# DISTRICT conference 2023 GOD IS ON MONE

CELEBRATING 175 YEARS OF MINISTRY

1848 - 2023

# Contents

AGENDA

- 4 CONFERENCE ROLL CALL
- CONFERENCE ACTION ITEMS
- NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT
- DISTRICT SECRETARY REPORT
- DISTRICT TREASURER REPORT
- USF ASSIGNMENTS
- 29 FY24 BUDGET
- STATISTICAL SUMMARY
- MINISTRY DIRECTOR REPORTS
- 40 DBMD REPORT
- PASTORAL PLACEMENTS
- MINISTERIAL APPOINTMENTS
- 58 DISTRICT CALENDAR

#### Agenda 8:00 am **Registration & Check-In Business Session 1** 9:00 am Welcome & Worship Call to Order & Establish the Voting Section Appointing of the Session Tellers Adoption of the Agenda Dedication of the Conference Journal Approval of 2023 Ordination Candidates Report of the General Superintendent Report of the District Superintendent Report of the District Treasurer 10:20 am Break 10:30 am Ordination Service Ordination Address | Dr. Jo Anne Lyon Presentation of Candidates | Rev. Carla Working Acceptance of Candidates | Dr. Mark Gorveatte Scripture Reading: Ephesians 3:7-9; 4:11-13 | Rev. Kalina Carlson Scripture Reading: John 10:7, 9-18 | Rev. Bob Burchell The Charge | Rev. Carla Working Examination of Ordination Candidates | Dr. Mark Gorveatte Covenant with Spouses | Dr. Mark Gorveatte Validation of Ordination | Dr. Mark Gorveatte Act of Ordination | Dr. Jo Anne Lyon & Ordination Council Prayer of Enduement | Dr. Jim Lo Closing Remarks | Dr. Mark Gorveatte 12:00 pm Lunch (On-Site) 1:00 pm **Business Session 2** Indiana Wesleyan University Update **Review of Ministerial Appointments Elections & Action Items** Ministerial Service Awards **Review & Approval of Pastoral Placements** Kingswood University Update Worship & Commissioning

#### 4:00 pm Adjournment

# 2023 Conference Roll Call

#### Voting Members

Roger Abraham	Retired Minister
Dimas Alberto	Assistant Pastor
Irma Alberto	Assistant Pastor
Jerrold Alexander	Pastor
Amy Allison	Assistant Pastor
Kaitlyn Altman	Assistant Pastor
David Anderson	Retired Minister
Ana Armiger	Assistant Pastor
Jeremy Armiger	Assistant Pastor
John Arnett	Retired Minister
Steven Arnett	Senior Pastor
Clifton Ashlock	Pastor
Mark Atkinson	Retired Minister
Oren Atkinson	Retired Minister
Matthew Aukerman	Missionary in TWC
William Babb II	Retired Minister
William Babb III	Retired Minister
Mark Bardsley	Chaplain
William Barlow	Retired Minister
Ernest Batman	Retired Minister
Donald Bayne	Senior Pastor
Matthew Beck	Educator in TWC Institution
Thomas Beck	Pastor
Timothy Becker	Senior Pastor
Jerome Bell	Pastor
Daniel Bellinger	Retired Minister
Clarence Bence	Retired Minister
Amy Biegel	Minister of Administration
Shawnda Bilbee	Chaplain
Gary Bingham	Senior Pastor
James Blackburn	Retired Minister
Johnnie Blair	Senior Pastor
Richard Borgman	Retired Minister
Carl (Chip) Bos	Assistant Pastor
M. David Boss	Special Service
Paul Boss	Retired Minister
Anita Bosworth	Interchurch Service
Daniel Bosworth	Retired Minister
Joshua Bowlin	Pastor
Jeffrey Brady	Pastor
Kevin Bragg	Assistant Pastor
John Bray	Retired Minister
Patty Bray	Retired Minister
Steven Bray	Ordained Minister On Reserve
Lyle Breeding	Senior Pastor
David Breidenbaugh	Ordained Minister On Reserve

Millions Desidents and	Detine d Minister
William Breidenbaugh	Retired Minister
Meredith Brower	Educational Leave
Duane Brown	Interchurch Service
Michael Brown	Interchurch Service
James Buckles	Retired Minister
Ryan Budde	Senior Pastor
Robert Burchell	Chaplain
Seth Bye	Pastor
Tony Bye	Senior Pastor
Lawrence Byrnes	Retired Minister
Philip Carder	Pastor
Rick Carder	Interchurch Service
Kalina Carlson	Assistant Pastor
Wanda Carter	Retired Minister
Dirk Case	Interchurch Service
Howard Castle	Retired Minister
Laura Catlin	Assistant Pastor
George Cecil	Retired Minister
CK Chitty	Retired Minister
Kory Christensen	Senior Pastor
Judith Chroniak-Hatt	Pastor
Daniel Clark	Senior Pastor
Michael Cloud	Retired Minister
Andrew Colaw	Assistant Pastor
Michael K Colaw	Senior Pastor
Michael A Colaw	Assistant Pastor
Andrew Cole	Pastor
Richard Cole	Assistant Pastor
Steven Colter	Retired Minister
Vickie Conrad	Assistant Pastor
Jessica Cordes	Minister of Children's Ministries
David Cox	Senior Pastor
Megan Cox	Youth Pastor
Robert Cragun	Pastor
J. Eric Crisp	Ordained Minister On Reserve
Judith Crossman	Retired Minister
William Croto	Chaplain
Dennis Croy	Retired Minister
Steven Cunnington	Retired Minister
Trevor Dailey	Assistant Pastor
Richard Dean	Retired Minister
Charles Dederick	Retired Minister
Mark Deisler	Assistant Pastor
Richard Deisler	Retired Minister
Madeline Delgado	Assistant Pastor
Jay DeNeff	Retired Minister

Steven DeNeff	Senior Pastor
David Dignal	Pastor
Barry Dixon	Senior Pastor
Joyce Dixon	Assistant Pastor
Oliver Dongell	Ordained Minister On Reserve
Alan Downing	Pastor
David Drury	Pastor
John Drury	Educator in TWC Institution
Keith Drury	Retired Minister
Kenneth Dykhoff	Assistant Pastor
Patrick Eby	Educator in TWC Institution
Daniel Eckart	Retired Minister
Gerald Edris	Retired Minister
Fred Ellis	Retired Minister
Steven Emery	Retired Minister
Marvin Ensley	Chaplain
Jorge Escalante	Assistant Pastor
Zulema Escalante	Assistant Pastor
Josh Fakhoury	Assistant Pastor
Noah Farmer	Senior Pastor
Barry Faucett	Retired Minister
Ronald Ferguson	Pastor
Scott Ferguson	Senior Pastor
Daniel Fisher	Senior Pastor
Timothy Fisher	Retired Minister
Richard Fletcher	Assistant Pastor
Jessica Folz	Assistant Pastor
Dean Forbes	Assistant Pastor
Ronald Forsythe	Pastor
Joshua Fox	Pastor
Allison Francis	Assistant Pastor
Samantha Freds	Assistant Pastor
Edward Friberg	Senior Pastor
Martin Furrow	Pastor
Michael Gallant	Pastor
Timothy Gallant	Ordained Minister On Reserve
Kenneth Gates	Reserve General Evangelist
Joel Gearhart	Minister of Pastoral Care
Eric George	Pastor
Jacob Gibson	Senior Pastor
Kenneth Gilmore	Educational Leave
Don Glenn	Retired Minister
Lisa Glunt	Assistant Pastor
Philip Gormong	Employed by World Headquarters
Mark Gorveatte	District Superintendent
Jere Gowin	Pastor
Sidney Gray	Retired Minister
Theodore Griffin	Pastor
Allen Gross	Senior Pastor
Robert Hallett	Interchurch Service
Beau Hamner	Assistant Pastor

	Page 5
John Hannan	Pastor
Derek Hansen	Chaplain
Joseph Harmon	Retired Minister
Hubert Harriman	Retired Minister
Cynthia Helvie	Interchurch Service
Michael Helvie	Interchurch Service
Alexander Henry	Assistant Pastor
Michael Henry	Pastor
Michele Henry	Assistant Pastor
Harold Henson	Ordained Minister On Reserve
Harvey Herring	Retired Minister
Ronald Herring	Retired Minister
Teresa Hester	Assistant Pastor
Kimberly Hewitt	Assistant Pastor
Michael Hewitt	Senior Pastor
Dennis Hilton	Retired Minister
David Hines	Youth Pastor
Emily Hines	Assistant Pastor
Matthew Hines	Assistant Pastor
Thomas Hines	Retired Minister
N. Keith Hinton	Retired Minister
Logan Hoffman	Educator in TWC Institution
Brian Holland	Youth Pastor
Bradley Holmes	Assistant Pastor
Gregory Holmes	Pastor
Matt Horne	Chaplain
Kyle Horton	Senior Pastor
Donald Howell	Interchurch Service
Catherine Howie	Assistant Pastor
Stephen Howlett	Assistant Pastor
Steven Hudson	Retired Minister
Larry Hughes	Retired Minister
Taylor Hulse	Assistant Pastor
Ronald Hurlocker	Assistant Pastor
Chris Hurst	Youth Pastor
Gwen Jackson	Ordained Minister On Reserve
Joseph Jackson	Senior Pastor
Gale Janofski	Retired Minister
Andrew Jellison	Senior Pastor
Rochelle Jenkins	Ordained Minister On Reserve
Ronald Johnson	Retired Minister
Ben Jones	Pastor
Keith Jones	Retired Minister
Morris Jones	Pastor
Samuel Kauerauf	Assistant Pastor
Jared Kaufman	Assistant Pastor
Joshua Keesling	Assistant Pastor
James Keilholtz	Retired Minister
Stephen Keith	Assistant Pastor
E Wayne Keller	Retired Minister
Christian Kelley	Assistant Pastor

#### Page 6

Joseph Kelly Retired Minister	
Leanne Ketcham Interchurch Service	
Max Kingsolver Retired Minister	
Andrew Kinney Youth Pastor	
Brent Kirby Interchurch Service	
Cody Kohler Assistant Pastor	
Jonathan Kulaga Educator in TWC Institut	ion
Magda Kurker Pastor	
John Lake Retired Minister	
Marvin Lamb Retired Minister	
Josh Lavender Assistant Pastor	
O. Allen Laws Ordained Minister On Re	serve
Aaron Lee Senior Pastor	
Ashley Lee Minister of Children's Mi	nistries
Nathaniel Lee Assistant Pastor	
Levi Lehman Assistant Pastor	
David Leitzel Pastor	
Bradley LeRoy Ordained Minister On Re	serve
Larisa Levicheva Educator in TWC Institut	
Joshua Light Ordained Minister On Re	
C. Ethan Linder Assistant Pastor	
Gary Livengood Assistant Pastor	
James Lo Educator in TWC Institut	ion
Carol Longenecker Retired Minister	
Kent Longenecker Retired Minister	
Grace Lopez Supply Pastor, Wesleyan	
Neftali Lopez Chaplain	•
Ed Love Employed by World Head	dauartere
Amy Luedtke Minister of Pastoral Care	
,	;
Jeffrey Luttrell Chaplain	
F. Wayne Lyon Retired Minister	
Jo Anne Lyon Retired Minister	
Bernard Lytle Retired Minister	
Larry Maddox Retired Minister	
Rebecca Maddox Retired Minister	
Samuel Maddox Jr Pastor	
Samuel Maddox Sr Retired Minister	ion
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC Institut	
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired Minister	
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant Pastor	
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant PastorRick MatthewsRetired Minister	
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant PastorRick MatthewsRetired MinisterPaul McBeeOrdained Minister On Re	serve
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant PastorRick MatthewsRetired MinisterPaul McBeeOrdained Minister On ReCharles McCallumRetired Minister	serve
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant PastorRick MatthewsRetired MinisterPaul McBeeOrdained Minister On Re	serve
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant PastorRick MatthewsRetired MinisterPaul McBeeOrdained Minister On ReCharles McCallumRetired Minister	serve
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant PastorRick MatthewsRetired MinisterPaul McBeeOrdained Minister On ReCharles McCallumRetired MinisterRonald McClungRetired Minister	serve
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant PastorRick MatthewsRetired MinisterPaul McBeeOrdained Minister On ReCharles McCallumRetired MinisterRonald McClungRetired MinisterScott McDermidSenior Pastor	serve
Samuel Maddox SrRetired MinisterAlexander ManduraEducator in TWC InstitutSidney MartinRetired MinisterStephen MathewsAssistant PastorRick MatthewsRetired MinisterPaul McBeeOrdained Minister On ReCharles McCallumRetired MinisterRonald McClungRetired MinisterScott McDermidSenior PastorDonald McDowellRetired Minister	serve

	Crossroads District Conference 2023
Ralph Meredith	Retired Minister
Brent Miller	Pastor
John Miller	Pastor
Matthew Miller	Retired Minister
Herbert Mohler	Retired Minister
James E Moore	Special Service
James R Moore	Interchurch Service
Larry Moore	Employed by World Headquarters
Jonathan Morgan	Educator in TWC Institution
Stephanie Morris	Minister of Children's Ministries
James Mowat	Retired Minister
Stephen Nelson	Retired Minister
Jonathan Noggle	Pastor
Trevor O'Dell	Assistant Pastor
Gary Oglesby	Assistant Pastor
Matthew Ohime	Pastor
Scott Olson	Interchurch Service
Esther Osborne	Assistant Pastor
Jarod Osborne	Senior Pastor
Aldean Pablo	Senior Pastor
Joseph Park	Senior Pastor
Benjamin Parker	Pastor
Logan Patriquin	Educational Leave
Robert Pavey	Retired Minister
Luis Penaranda	Educator in TWC Institution
John Perkinson	Retired Minister
Paul Phillippe	Retired Minister
Nancy Pike	Assistant Pastor
John Porterfield	Retired Minister
Donald Pruett	Retired Minister
Charles Purciful	Retired Minister
Paul Ramsey	Retired Minister
Mark Rennaker	Senior Pastor
Nicholas Reynolds	Minister of Children's Ministries
Elizabeth Rhyno	Assistant Pastor
Scott Rhyno	Senior Pastor
Wayne Richards	Interchurch Service
Nathan Richardson	Pastor
James Ricker	Retired Minister
Andrew Riemersma	Pastor
Jordan Rife	Assistant Pastor
Dwight Robertson	Interchurch Service
Calimerio Rodriguez	Pastor
Eric Roemer	Senior Pastor
Chamnol Romdenh	Interchurch Service
Mason Rosado	Assistant Pastor
Johanna Rugh	Employed by World Headquarters
Claudia Ruiz	Pastor
Steven Russell	Assistant Pastor
Christine Ryan	Assistant Pastor
Kenneth Sandefur	Retired Minister

Lane Sander	Assistant Pastor
Ruben Santos	Assistant Pastor
Joe Sawyer	Retired Minister
Carolyn Schenck	Co-Pastor
Kenneth Schenck	Educator in TWC Institution
Richard Schenck	Co-Pastor
Wayne Schmidt	Administrator - General Church
Joseph Schmit	Assistant Pastor
Mark Schnell	Interchurch Service
Robert Schroeder	Retired Minister
Mike Schultz	Assistant Pastor
David Scott	Missionary in TWC
Duane Seitz	Pastor
David Shafer	Senior Pastor
Jeffrey Shafer	Interchurch Service
Andrea Shaull	Pastor
Brandon Shroyer	Youth Pastor
Robert Simons	Assistant Pastor
Naomi Small	Assistant Pastor
David Smith	Itinerant Bible Teacher
Bradford Snyder	Pastor
Jerry Snyder	Retired Minister
Alexander (AI) Soultz	Special Service
Virginia Soultz	Chaplain
Angela Spangler	Assistant Pastor
Keith Springer	Educator in TWC Institution
Richard Sprowl	Retired Minister
James Stamper	Assistant Pastor
Matthew Stewart	Senior Pastor
Andrea Summers	Educator in TWC Institution
Jeremy Summers	Educator in TWC Institution
Michael Summers	Assistant Pastor
Robert Summitt	Pastor
Paul Swauger	Retired Minister
David Swisher	Educator in TWC Institution
lan Swyers	Employed by World Headquarters
Zachary Szmara	Pastor
Jason Tash	Assistant Pastor
Christopher Taylor	Senior Pastor
Jessica Teegarden	Assistant Pastor
Brad Terhune	Special Service
D. Philip Thomas	Retired Minister
James Nathan Thomas	Retired Minister
Craig Thurmon	Pastor
Khamh Tin Uk	Assistant Pastor
Rob Tippey	Senior Pastor
Douglas Trennepohl	Retired Minister
Preston Trent	Assistant Pastor
Matthew Trexler	Senior Pastor
David Troyer	Retired Minister
George Troyer	Retired Minister

	Page 7
Marc Ulrich	Pastor
Daniel Van Cise	Pastor
Robert Van Cise	Retired Minister
Daniel Van Duyne	Assistant Pastor
Lloyd Van Meter	Retired Minister
Richard Van Vuren	Ordained Minister On Reserve
Paul VanCise	Senior Pastor
David Vardaman	Retired Minister
Emily Vermilya	Assistant Pastor
James P Vermilya	Retired Minister
James R Vermilya	Educator in TWC Institution
Keith Vincent	Retired Minister
Benjamin Wade	Assistant Pastor
Kaleb Wakeman	Assistant Pastor
Laura Walls	Assistant Pastor
John Walton	Assistant Pastor
Joshua Warren	Ordained Minister On Reserve
James Watkins	Special Service
Joseph Watkins	Retired Minister
Lois Watkins	Retired Minister
Marc Watkins	Assistant Pastor
Jared Webb	Assistant Pastor
James Weinmann	Senior Pastor
Michael Weller	Pastor
Silas West	Retired Minister
Logan Westrick	Retired Minister
David Whitmire	Retired Minister
Jon Wiest	Interchurch Service
AJ Wilk	Assistant Pastor
Aaron Wilkinson	Assistant Pastor
Lisa Willey	Educator in TWC Institution
Brian Williams	Pastor
Christopher Williams	Senior Pastor
Nick Wilson	Assistant Pastor
Norman Glenn Wilson	Retired Minister
Norman Glen Wilson	Retired Minister
Shane Wilson	Senior Pastor
Walter Wilson	Retired Minister
James Wise	Educator in TWC Institution
Timothy Witte	Pastor
Richard Wollan	Special Service
Michael Wood	Minister of Administration
Carla Working	Assistant Pastor, Employed by TWC
Zachary Working	Senior Pastor
Allen Wright	Chaplain
David Wright	Retired Minister
John Wrightsman	Retired Minister
Randy Yaryan	Pastor
Mason Yopp	Assistant Pastor
Adriana Zarate	Assistant Pastor
Ramon Zarate	Assistant Pastor

#### **DBA Ex-Officio Lay Delegates**

Mrs. Cynthia Horn	
Mr. Joel Hunt	
Mrs. Lisa Knepp	

#### **Non-Voting Members**

Yamil Acevedo	Minister in Denom. Transfer Process
Maria Alavez	Ministerial Student
Gawin Anderson	Supply Pastor in process of denom trans.
Steven Armes	Special Workers (other)
Nicholas Armes	Without Appointment
Paul Baker	Ministerial Student
James Barnes	Retired Minister
James Bechdol	Special Workers (other)
Destiny Bess	Ministerial Student
Stephan Binns	Without Appointment
Christopher Bounds	Minister in Denom. Transfer Process
Dale Bradford	Ministerial Student
Nicholas Brock	Ministerial Student
Jose Argenis Cardenas	Supply Pastor, Lay
Leslie Colaw	Ministerial Student
Tisha Connell	Ministerial Student, Asst. Supply Pastor
Amy Cruez	Ministerial Student
Hermilo Cruz-Carlos	Ministerial Student
Alex Cusumano	Ministerial Student
Colleen Derr	Minister in Denom. Transfer Process
Austin Farlow	Ministerial Student
Makayla Fulton	Ministerial Student
Yesenia Gaytan-Garcia	Ministerial Student
Eli Gilmore	Ministerial Student
Tomasa Granados	Ministerial Student
Jorden Green	Ministerial Student
Lenville Gross	Song Evangelist
Jose Guerrero	Asst. Supply Pastor, Non-Wesleyan
Duane Hammonds	Ministerial Student, Asst. Supply Pastor
Jennifer Harper	Ministerial Student
Dana Hernandez	Ministerial Student

Mrs. Tonya Scalf

Mrs. Reva Schultz

Mrs. Lennaire Vaughn

Darrel Herring	Supply Pastor, Non-Wesleyan
Caleb Hines	Ministerial Student
Steve Johnson	Ministerial Student
Grace Kann	Ministerial Student
Timothy Kelly	Ministerial Student
Matthew Kennedy	Ministerial Student, Asst. Supply Pastor
Sarah Klassen	Ministerial Student
Zachery Koch	Ministerial Student
Alexander Lawrence	Ministerial Student
Gregory Lismon	Asst. Sup. Past. in process of denom trans.
Nathan Mabry	Ministerial Student
Jack Marshall	Lay Evangelist
John Moyer	Asst. Sup. Past. in process of denom trans.
Kayla Patton	Ministerial Student, Asst. Supply Pastor
Mallory Retherford	Ministerial Student
Kyle Sanders	Ministerial Student, Asst. Supply Pastor
Douglas Sharrard	Without Appointment
Jerry Smith	Supply Pastor, Lay
Yechan Son	Ministerial Student, Asst. Supply Pastor
James Sonnefield	Without Appointment
Dorothea Staten	Ministerial Student
Noland Stewart	Ministerial Student
Rose Thompson	Ministerial Student
Patrick Tierney	Ministerial Student, Asst. Supply Pastor
Raegan Tippey	Ministerial Student, Asst. Supply Pastor
Benjamin Tuimuk	Supply Pastor, Lay
Terry Vaughn	Supply Pastor, Non-Wesleyan
Lennaire Vaughn	Ministerial Student, Supply Pastor
Sue Wampner	Special Workers (other)
Ervin Webster	Supply Pastor, Non-Wesleyan
Katie Wing	Ministerial Student

#### Local Church Lay Delegates

Albian	Dawn Haatan Jannifar Madday
Albion	Dawn Heaton, Jennifer Maddox
Anderson Living Hope Anderson Lone Oak	Terry Fennell
	Rick Robertson
Anderson North Anderson Restoration	Billy Edwards, William Hannah
	Deve Humphrey, Dedre Dedriguez
Anderson United	Dave Humphrey, Pedro Rodriguez
Avon 317 Church	Detricie Deservices John Osla Denny Osla
Bluffton Sonlight	Patricia Breeding, John Cole, Penny Cole
Bryant	Patrick Tierney, Jessica Tierney
Carmel Amistad Chesterfield Parkview	Joel Fergunson, Sinaí Uribe
	Chical Luffman
Cicero United Family	Chloe Huffman
Colfax	Ded Demon Aug Demon Zeal, Dees Aleine Dees Dees Themmon
Columbia City New Hope	Rod Roman, Sue Roman, Zack Ross, Alaina Ross, Rose Thompson
Delphi Union Street Elkhart Cielos Abiertos	Alecsys Fisher
	Dara da Dara
Elwood Central	Brenda Bess
Elwood Main Street	Gary Snyder, Marcus Galan
Fairmount	Des Deues
Fairmount Back Creek	Ron Bryan
Fishers One Multichurch Network	
Fishers Waterline	Device Llawisth
Fort Wayne Level 13	Bryan Horvath
Fort Wayne Lifeway	Carol Livengood, Debbie Fletcher, Jeff Musselman, David Seelye
Fort Wayne Three Rivers	Seth Ball, Carissa Seelye
Fowler Hope	David Drawing
Frankfort Connecting Point	Paul Brown
Frankfort Templo De Poder	
Gas City Eastview	Becky Horn, LaMar Horn, Cindy Roach, Marty Pruss, Patricia Moon
Gas City Southside Greenfield Browns Chapel	On any Tandarawa Oira day U. Marana
Greenfield Browns Chapel	Gary Tedrow, Cindy Huffman
	Jonathan Albright
Greentown	John Dean, Karen Farmer, Jim Logsdon
Hamilton	
Hamlet Davis	
Hartford City	LouAnn Brogan, Candace Fox, Tammy Flennery
Huntington Hope Rising	Diane Johnson, Dave Thrift
Huntington Lancaster	Nilos Foroman, Gwan Foroman
Indianapolis Calvary Family	Niles Foreman, Gwen Foreman
Indianapolis Central	
Indianapolis Circle City	
Indianapolis Divine Direction	Stanbania Cantla
Indianapolis Encounter Assembly	Stephanie Gentle
Indianapolis Evanston Avenue	
Indianapolis Monte de Sion	
Indianapolis Saint Stephens	
Indianapolis Shalom	
Indianapolis Southview	Kathy Ullom, Sarah Klassen
Indianapolis Trinity	Carol Christenberry, Steve Christenberry, Greg Leiker, Jami Leiker, Cheryl Woodbury, Phil Woodbury
Jonesboro Westview	Steve Armes, Brenda Sloan
Kingsford Heights Kokomo Southdowns	Karen Wallace LaVerne Wilmot

Page 10

Lafayette Evergreen	Jim Lippard, Betty Ordway
Lafayette The Branch	Becky Schmidt, Brooke Hall
Laketon	Cindy Hall, Suzanne Cox
LaOtto Cultivate	Bev Troyer, Don Grubaugh
Lapel Daybreak	
Lapel Fishersburg	Cindy Summitt
Larwill	
Lebanon	Karen Shepherd
Logansport The Bridge	
Marion Brinker Heights	Kristian Michaelson
Marion Brookhaven	Jon Cromer, Jacob Hochstetler, Sheryl Landis, Clayton Soultz, Shawn Swan, Rosalyn Turcott
Marion Chapel Pike	Shawn Hoffman, Merle Brown, Becca Bowlin
Marion College	Carol Bence, Jan Bowen, Wenda Clement, Lori DeNeff, Maria Kelly, Madi Williams, David Woods
Marion Commoners	
Marion Hillside	Leanne Bingham, Kayla Faulkner
Marion Lakeview	Ron Campbell, Sharon Campbell, David Gray, Marietta Williams
Marion Nelson Street	Jaclyn Witte
Marion The River	Deb Cain, Michael Johnson, Laurie Johnson
Marion West 8th Street	Janet Miller
Merrillville ReThink	
Monon	Steve Swain
Mount Etna Community Life	Liana Gallant, Danielle Shaw
Muncie Memorial	Diana George
Muncie Rising Hope	Dale Bradford
New Carlisle	
New Castle Memorial	
New Castle Mt. Zion	Paula Arnett, Debbie Johnson
New Haven Impact	Matthew Kennedy
Noblesville Circle of Hope	Dave Cook, Jenny Higginbotham, Lillian Foland, LaDonna Thompson
North Liberty Beaver Creek	Dave look, senny higginbothani, Linian Foland, Labonna Hompson
Pendleton Autumn Hills	Kevin Conner
Plymouth	Randy Hulse, Reata Dongell, Steve Barry, Pam Barry
Plymouth Shiloh	Pam Anson, Colleen Forsyth
Richmond Casa del Alfarero	
Richmond LlfeSpring	Austin Farlow, John Harris, Kathy Harris, Karli Heiderich, Barry Pike, Cindy Swardenski, Jim Swardenski
Roanoke Arise	Chris Fensler
Rochester The Cross	Cindy Smith, Rick Stone, Diane Weaver Gady
Sheridan Six Points	Janet Bragg, Mary Stone, Linda McClay
Shirley Grant City	Lavonne Schuyler
Silver Lake	Jo Ellen Seitz
South Bend Sonlight	Shane Goedeck
South Bend The Bridge	Lennaire Vaughn
Speedway Way City	
Swayzee Sims	
Sweetser	Rita Faust, Sara Simpson
Tipton Ash Street	
Tipton Trinity	Aleah Long, Cathy McLeod, Mallory Retherford
Union City CrossRoads	
Wabash New Journey	Tony Pulley, Donna Pulley
Wabash North	
Warsaw Pathway	Steve Scott, Mary Scott, Jimma Masterson
Westfield One Church	Phil Nettleton
Winchester Union Street	
Woodburn Edgerton	Angela Teagle-Pierce, Jason Hower

## **Conference Action Items**

#### Permanent Status as a Licensed Minister

Resolved, that a Standing Rule be added to state:

Individuals appointed as Assistant Staff Pastors may apply to the DBMD for permanent status as a Licensed Minister subject to denominational requirements.

A person wishing to be appointed to the position of sole or senior pastor must be an ordained minister, commissioned minister, or in the process of pursuing credentials as an ordained or commissioned minister in The Wesleyan Church.

#### **Amendment to Standing Rule CD-55**

Resolved, that Crossroads District Standing Rule CD-54 be deleted and Standing Rule CD-55 be revised to read as follows:

Each church shall designate 1% of their assessable income for their own "Church Multiplication Fund" (Discipline 2000:3) and use those funds in launching church plants and/or new campuses. Projects approved by the District Board of Administration shall be eligible to receive matching grants from the Great Commission Fund.

The combined USF/EIF/DSF apportionment shall be 9% of the assessable base (subject to the cap provisions of Discipline 2005:1-4).

# Nominating Committee Report

#### District Secretary | ELECT 1



#### Dr. Craig Thurmon Sr.

Church Planter / Lead Pastor, The Encounter Assembly (Indianapolis) Currently Serving on the District Board of Administration as District Secretary

#### District Board of Administration (Ordained) | ELECT 1



**Rev. Barry Dixon** Lead Pastor, Calvary Family (Indianapolis)



#### **Rev. Emily Vermilya** Operations & Development Pastor, College Wesleyan (Marion)

#### District Board of Administration (Lay) | ELECT 2



**Mr. Ken Ehman** Member of Trinity Wesleyan (Tipton) serving in First Impressions and Next Gen Ministries



**Mr. Chris Fensler** Member of Arise (Roanoke) serving as Treasurer and Facility Manager



**Mrs. Amanda Roemer** Member of Greentown Wesleyan serving as Administrative Assistant

#### Nominating Committee (Ordained) | ELECT 3



**Rev. Jessica Folz** Assistant Pastor, Lakeview Wesleyan (Marion)



**Rev. Dr. Richard Schenck** Co-Pastor, Circle of Hope (Noblesville)



**Rev. Dan VanDuyne** Pastor of Spiritual Formation, LifeSpring Church (Richmond)



**Rev. Carla Working** Assistant Pastor, Hope Rising (Huntington)

#### Nominating Committee (Lay) | ELECT 3



**Mr. David Henry** Member of Brookhaven Wesleyan (Marion)



**Mrs. Lisa Knepp** Member of Shiloh Wesleyan (Plymouth)



**Mrs. Kimberlee Wilson** Member of Iglesia Wesleyana Amistad Cristiana (Carmel)

#### **Current DBA Members at Large**

Rev. Theodore Griffin (Through 2025) Rev. Michele Henry (Through 2025) Mrs. Cynthia Horn (Through 2025) Mr. Joel Hunt (Through 2024) Rev. Neftali Lopez (Through 2025) Mrs. Tonya Scalf (Through 2024) Mrs. Reva Schultz (Through 2025)

#### **DBA Members Completing 3-Year Term**

Mrs. Lisa Knepp Mrs. Lennaire Vaughn

# District Secretary Report

#### 2022-2023 DISTRICT BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION (DBA):

Rev. Dr. Mark Gorveatte (Chair), Rev. Dr. Christopher Williams (Assistant DS), Rev. Dr. Craig Thurmon Sr. (District Secretary), Rev. Matthew Trexler (District Treasurer), Rev. Theodore Griffin, Rev. Michele Henry, Mrs. Cynthia Horn, Mr. Joel Hunt, Mrs. Lisa Knepp, Rev. Neftali Lopez, Mrs. Tonya Scalf, Mrs. Reva Schultz, Mrs. Lennaire Vaughn

#### THE DBA ENACTED THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS THIS PAST CONFERENCE YEAR:

#### **Churches Discontinued (Discipline 1233:30)**

- Declared 3D Microchurch (Indianapolis, IN) discontinued
- Declared Circle City Microchurch (Indianapolis, IN) discontinued
- Declared Muncie East 18th Street (Muncie, IN) discontinued
- Declared Warren Wesleyan Church (Warren, IN) discontinued

#### **Approved Sales and Usage of Church Properties**

The Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church has ordered the sale of the following:

- Approved the sale of the Muncie East 18th Street church property and parsonage
- Approved the sale of the Circle of Hope (Beech Grove campus) church parsonage
- Approved the sale of the Warren Wesleyan (Warren, IN) church property and parsonage
- Approved the sale of the Hope Wesleyan (Fowler, IN) church parsonage

#### **Approved Loans**

The Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church has ordered the execution of the following loans:

- Approved a \$17,000 WIF loan to United Wesleyan (Anderson, IN)
- Approved a \$300,000 WIF loan to Arise (Roanoke, IN)
- Approved a \$160,000 bridge loan from the Property and Building Fund to Mt Etna Community Life (Mt Etna, IN) to be paid back no later than April 30, 2023
- Conditionally approved a \$260,000 WIF loan to Restoration Church (Anderson, IN)
- Approved a \$45,000 WIF loan to Calvary Family (Indianapolis, IN)

#### **District Developing Church Status and Name Changes**

- Approved Central Wesleyan (Elwood, IN) from Established Church status to Developing Church status
- Approved Harvest Church (Greenfield, IN) from Established Church status to Developing Church status
- Approved Casa del Alfarero (Richmond, IN) from Established Church status to Developing Church status

#### **Approved Church Plant Assistance**

- Approved a \$79,000 loan to 317 Church (Avon, IN) from the District Property Fund for repairs/ improvements on district-owned facilities
- Approved a \$7,500 matching grant to Rising Hope Church (Muncie, IN)
- Approved a \$5,000 matching grant to The Table (Indianapolis, IN)
- Approved a \$15,000 matching grant to 317 Church (Avon, IN)

#### **Other Business**

- Approved a \$50,000 allocation from the Thrive Fund to provide one hundred \$500 scholarships for pastors to attend The Gathering in Orlando in January 2023
- Approved the establishment of Mt Etna Community Life Church
- Approved The Table (indianapolis, IN) as a Church Plant of the Crossroads District

#### Transfers Into The District:

- Ordained Minister Jared Kaufman from Northwest
- Ordained Minister Kenneth Schenck from Western New York
- Ordained Minister Johanna Rugh from Distrito Hispano Suroeste
- Ordained Minister Leanne Ketcham from Mountain Plains
- Ordained Minister Gale Janofski from Shenandoah
- Ordained Minister Samuel Maddox, Sr from Great Lakes
- Ordained Minister Rebecca Maddox from Great Lakes
- Ordained Minister Dennis Croy from Greater Ohio
- Ordained Minister Michael Gallant from Penn York
- Ordained Minister Andrea Shaull from Great Lakes
- Ordained Minister Meredith Brower from Great Lakes

#### **Transfers Out Of The District:**

- Licensed Minister Madison May to Iowa Minnesota
- Ordained Minister Chris Claassen to Northeast
- Ministerial Student Cheyanne McClure to Northwest
- Ordained Minister Ryan VanMatreto Global Methodist Church

#### **Filed Credentials:**

- Allison Miller (Ordination)
- Joe Deckard (Ordination)
- Bernie Haddad (Ordination)
- Victor Silva Ruiz (Ordination)
- Tony Cole (Ordination)

#### Page 16

# **District Treasurer Report**

#### The CSF (Stewardship Funds) will be distributed as follows:

- The General Treasurer of The Wesleyan Church: 60% of CSF contributed
  - The General Fund of The Wesleyan Church will receive 45.83% of the 60% sent to the General Treasurer - The Education Fund of The Wesleyan Church will receive 54.17% of the 60% sent to the General Treasurer
- .
- The Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church: 40% of the CSF contributed The CD Great Commission Fund will receive a minimum of 25% of the district's portion
- The CD General Fund will receive 75% or less of the district's portion

#### **Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church Fund Balances**

	FYE 4/30/22	4/30/2023
General Operations Fund Great Commission Fund Property Fund Missions Thrive Fund	\$ 307,463 \$ 959,020 \$ 735,350 \$ 155,920 \$ 157,125	\$ 369,042 \$ 1,017,612 \$ 737,388 \$ 154,827 \$ 156,644
Total	\$ 2,314,878	\$ 2,435,513

#### **Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church United Stewardship Funds**

For period ending 04/30/23

	Total
Income	
4000 United Stewardship Fund	
4010 USF Income	\$ 495,504
4020 EIF Income	\$ 601,442
Total 4000 United Stewardship Fund	\$ 1,096,946
Total Income	\$ 1,096,946
Expenses	
7010 USF Payments	\$ 495,504
7020 EIF Payments	\$ 601,442
Total Expenses	\$ 1,096,946
Net due to TWC	\$ -
District Stewardship Funds	\$ 684,116
United Stewardship Funds	\$ 495,504
Education Funds	\$ 601,442
Total collected to April 30 2023	\$ 1,781,062

**Comparative Year to Date** 

	4/30/2022		4/30/2023	
ASSETS				
Current Assets				
Bank Accounts				
1010 Checking - Star Financial Bank	\$	231,187	\$	383,733
1050 Wesleyan Investment Fund	\$	1,955,553	\$	2,106,861
Total Bank Accounts	\$	2,186,740	\$	2,490,594
Other Current Assets				
Accounts Receivable	\$	-	\$	-
Roanoke Arise	\$	259,335	\$	-
Total Other Current Assets	\$	259,335	\$	-
Total Current Assets	\$	2,446,075	\$	2,490,594
Fixed Assets				
Total Fixed Assets	\$	-	\$	-
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	2,446,075	\$	2,490,594
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY				
Liabilities				
Current Liabilities				
Accounts Payable				
2000 Accounts Payable	\$	99,412	\$	-
Total Accounts Payable	\$	99,412	\$	-
Other Current Liabilities				
2020 Prepaid USF	\$	7,433	\$	8,621
2030 Senior Adults Ministries	\$	-	\$	3,462
2080 Prepaid Items	\$	-	\$	1,500
2125 Heartland Region Funds	\$	-	\$	19,646
2100 Accrued Payroll	\$	-	\$	-
Total Other Current Liabilities	\$	7,433	\$	33,229
Total Current Liabilities	\$	106,845	\$	33,229
Long-Term Liabilities				
2500 Auto Reserve	\$	24,352	\$	21,852
Total Long-Term Liabilities	\$	24,352	\$	21,852
Total Liabilities	\$	131,197	\$	55,081
Equity				
3110 Retained Earnings	\$	2,224,029	\$	2,314,878
Net Income	\$	90,849	\$	120,635
Total Equity	\$	2,314,878	\$	2,435,513
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	\$	2,446,075	\$	2,490,594

#### Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church General Fund YTD

For the period ending 04/30/2023

	_YT	D Actual	YTD Budget		Variance	
Income						
4030 District Stewardship Fund	\$	684,116	\$	650,000	\$	34,116
4035 Great Comm. Transfer	\$	(173,660)	\$	(165,000)	\$	(8,660)
4050 Miscellaneous Income	\$	536	\$	-	\$	-
4910 Interest & Dividends	\$	5,252	\$	6,500	\$	(1,248)
Total Income	\$	516,244	\$	491,500	\$	24,744
Expenses						
5000 Personnel Costs	\$	297,748	\$	306,584	\$	(8,836)
5110 Shared Services Exp	\$	19,200	\$	19,500	\$	(300)
5150 Honorariums	\$	12,050	\$	12,000	\$	50
5200 Office Space	\$	6,500	\$	9,000	\$	(2,500)
5230 Insurance - Auto	\$	2,737	\$	3,200	\$	(463)
5250 Missions Fund Transfer	\$	12,000	\$	12,000	\$	-
5300 Office Expenses	\$	9,817	\$	10,000	\$	(183)
5340 Telephone	\$	554	\$	2,000	\$	(1,446)
5350 Equipment Purchases	\$	735	\$	4,000	\$	(3,265)
5370 Website	\$	74	\$	3,000	\$	(2,926)
5380 Committee Expense	\$	6,017	\$	8,000	\$	(1,983)
5385 Hospitality/Fellowship	\$	20,970	\$	25,000	\$	(4,030)
5395 District Conference	\$	20,693	\$	20,000	\$	693
5410 Pastoral Emergency Care	\$	7,170	\$	12,000	\$	(4,830)
5500 Auto Expense - DS & ADS	\$	11,987	\$	9,000	\$	2,987
5520 Auto Accrual- DS & ADS	\$	12,000	\$	12,000	\$	-
5530 Seminar & Meeting Exp.	\$	2,140	\$	2,000	\$	140
5550 Travel (executive)	\$	12,273	\$	10,000	\$	2,273
Total Expenses	\$	454,665	\$	479,284	\$	(24,619)
Net Income	\$	61,579	\$	12,216	\$	49,363

#### Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church Great Commission Fund YTD For the period ending 04/30/23

		YTD Actual		YTD Budget		Variance	
Income							
4060 Great Commission Fund	\$	173,660	\$	165,000	\$	8,660	
4070 Church Planting Donations	\$	1,340	\$	-	\$	1,340	
4100 Regional CP Income			\$	-			
4110 Region 1 CP Income	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	
4120 Region 2 CP Income	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	
4130 Region 3 CP Income	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	
Total 4100 Regional CP Income	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	
4800 Program and Event Registrations	\$	1,080	\$	-	\$	1,080	
4910 Interest & Dividends	\$	15,444	\$	15,000	\$	444	
Total Income	\$	191,524	\$	180,000	\$	11,524	
Expenses							
6000 Church Planting Expenses							
6010 Regional CP Matching Grants	\$	21,286	\$	180,000	\$	(158,714)	
6060 CP Recruitment/Assessment	\$	125	\$	20,000	\$	(19,875)	
Total 6000 Church Planting Expenses	\$	21,411	\$	200,000	\$	(178,589)	
6100 Church Revitalization Expenses	\$	-					
6115 Training/Coaching	\$	16,400	\$	20,000	\$	(3,600)	
6120 Revitalization Grants	\$	4,748	\$	20,000	\$	(15,252)	
6300 Circuit Riders	\$	19,500	\$	30,000	\$	(10,500)	
6310 Circuit Rider Travel/Hospitality	\$	5,934	\$	10,000	\$	(4,066)	
Total 6100 Church Revitalization Expenses	\$	46,582	\$	80,000	\$	(33,418)	
6200 Leader Development							
6210 Regional Leader Development	\$	28,979	\$	30,000	\$	(1,021)	
6250 DBMD	\$	6,503	\$	10,000	\$	(3,497)	
6260 Ordination	\$	1,698	\$	3,000	\$	(1,302)	
6270 The Gathering 2022 (2023)	\$	27,759	\$	35,000	\$	(7,241)	
Total 6200 Leader Development	\$	64,939	\$	78,000	\$	(13,061)	
Total Expenses	\$	132,932	\$	358,000	\$	(225,068)	
Net Income	\$	58,592					

#### Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church Property Fund YTD

For period ending April 30 2023

	Budget to						
		Actual		Date		Variance	
Income							
4700 Property Income							
4710 Anderson North Loan Interest	\$	-	\$	2,500	\$	(2,500)	
4715 Anderson North Loan Repayment	\$	32,669	\$	9,350	\$	23,319	
4730 Eastlawn Parsonage Loan Interest	\$	466	\$	865	\$	(399)	
4735 Eastlawn Parsonage Loan Principal	\$	1,346	\$	2,242	\$	(896)	
4740 Albion Cornerstone School	\$	12,000	\$	12,000	\$	-	
4780 Sale of District Assets	\$	195,843	\$	-	\$	195,843	
Total 4700 Property Income	\$	242,325	\$	26,957	\$	215,368	
4910 Interest & Dividends	\$	11,085	\$	7,000	\$	4,085	
Total Income	\$	253,410	\$	33,957	\$	219,453	
Gross Profit	\$	253,410	\$	33,957	\$	219,453	
Expenses							
9520 Maintenance & Repairs PF	\$	101,044	\$	25,000	\$	76,044	
9540 Insurance Expense PF	\$	7,703	\$	25,000	\$	(17,297)	
9550 Property Taxes	\$	(22,713)	\$	3,500	\$	(26,213)	
9560 Utilities (PF)	\$	-	\$	7,000	\$	(7,000)	
9570 Other PF Distrib from sale of assets	\$	165,338	\$	2,500	\$	162,838	
Total Expenses	\$	251,372	\$	63,000	\$	188,372	
Net Operating Income	\$	2,038	\$	(29,043)	\$	31,081	
Net Income	\$	2,038	\$	(29,043)	\$	31,081	

#### Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church Missions Fund YTD

For period ending April 30 2023

	Annual					
		Actual		Budget		riance
Income						
Prior year reserve transfer in	\$	10,000				
4050 Miscellaneous Income	\$	-	\$	2,000	\$	(2,000)
4080 Missions Project Transfer	\$	12,000	\$	12,000	\$	-
4910 Interest & Dividends	\$	2,356	\$	3,000	\$	(644)
Total Income	\$	24,356	\$	17,000	\$	7,356
Expenses						
8000 Missions Expenses						
8100 Missions - Mozambique	\$	3,500	\$	6,000	\$	(2,500)
8200 Missions Project Bangladesh	\$	6,500	\$	6,500	\$	-
8300 Other Missions Projects	\$	5,449	\$	4,500	\$	949
8300 Hepzibah62:4 Grant (from prior year)	\$	10,000	\$	-	\$	-
Total 8000 Missions Expenses	\$	25,449	\$	17,000	\$	8,449
Total Expenses	\$	25,449	\$	17,000	\$	8,449
Net Income	\$	(1,093)	\$	-	\$	(1,093)

#### Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church Thrive Fund Year to Date

For period ending 04/30/23

	Total							
		Actual	Annu	al Budget		Variance		
Income								
4050 Miscellaneous Income	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-		
4910 Interest & Dividends	\$	2,020	\$	600	\$	1,420		
Total Income	\$	2,020	\$	600	\$	1,420		
Gross Profit	\$	2,020	\$	600	\$	1,420		
Expenses								
8500 Thrive Expenses								
8510 Thrive/ Rest Well Initiative	\$	2,500	\$	-	\$	2,500		
8520 The Gathering	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-		
Total 8500 Thrive Expenses	\$	2,500	\$	-	\$	2,500		
Total Expenses	\$	2,500	\$	-	\$	2,500		
Net Income	\$	(480)	\$	600	\$	(1,080)		

# USF Assessments 2022-2023 (By Church Name)

#### \* Indicates Real-Time Tithe

Church	Annual Assessment	Monthly Assessment	Assessment Due to 4/30/23	Assessments Received to Date	% Received to Date
Albion	\$10,701.00	\$891.72	\$10,700.60	\$10,704.00	100%
Anderson Lone Oak	\$10,341.00	\$861.72	\$10,340.60	\$8,534.00	83%
Anderson North	\$12,672.00	\$1,056.01	\$12,672.10	\$12,672.00	100%
Anderson Restoration	\$600.00	\$50.00	\$600.00	\$650.00	108%
Anderson United	\$14,016.00	\$1,168.03	\$14,016.40	\$4,000.00	29%
Avon 317 Church	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,500.00	100%
Bluffton Sonlight	\$36,158.00	\$3,013.18	\$36,158.20	\$36,156.00	100%
Bryant	\$20,910.00	\$1,742.50	\$20,910.00	\$20,916.00	100%
Carmel Amistad Cristiana	\$9,391.00	\$782.58	\$9,391.00	\$9,396.00	100%
Chesterfield Parkview	\$10,508.00	\$875.67	\$10,508.00	\$9,966.00	95%
Cicero United Family	\$6,687.00	\$557.28	\$6,687.40	\$6,831.00	102%
Colfax	\$4,416.00	\$368.02	\$4,416.20	\$5,434.00	123%
Columbia New Hope	\$54,840.00	\$4,569.99	\$54,839.84	\$54,840.00	100%
Delphi Union Street	\$7,103.00	\$591.93	\$7,103.20	\$7,003.26	99%
Elkhart Cielos Abiertos	\$19.00	\$1.58	\$19.00	\$0.00	0%
Elwood Central *	\$5,562.00	\$463.47	\$5,561.60	\$5,561.60	100%
Elwood Main Street	\$16,856.00	\$1,404.68	\$16,856.20	\$16,860.00	100%
Fairmount	\$27,221.00	\$2,268.43	\$27,221.20	\$27,216.00	100%
Fairmount Back Creek	\$7,574.00	\$631.15	\$7,573.80	\$7,356.00	97%
Fishers Waterline	\$27,390.00	\$2,282.52	\$27,390.20	\$27,396.00	100%
Fort Wayne Level 13	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0%
Fort Wayne Lifeway	\$28,446.00	\$2,370.50	\$28,446.00	\$28,452.00	100%
Fort Wayne Three Rivers	\$23,231.00	\$1,935.93	\$23,231.10	\$23,232.00	100%
Fowler Hope	\$1,477.00	\$123.05	\$1,476.60	\$0.00	0%
Frankfort Connecting Point	\$3,659.00	\$304.95	\$3,659.40	\$3,660.00	100%
Frankfort Templo de Poder	\$3,150.00	\$262.53	\$3,150.30	\$2,532.00	80%
Gas City Eastview	\$42,274.00	\$3,522.85	\$42,274.20	\$42,276.00	100%
Gas City Southside	\$6,610.00	\$550.81	\$6,609.70	\$6,600.00	100%
Greenfield Brown's Chapel	\$29,037.00	\$2,419.73	\$29,036.70	\$29,037.80	100%
Greenfield Harvest	\$41,636.00	\$3,469.68	\$41,636.20	\$41,636.00	100%
Greentown	\$19,739.00	\$1,644.93	\$19,739.10	\$17,338.00	88%
Hamilton	\$11,244.00	\$936.96	\$11,243.50	\$11,244.00	100%
Hamlet Davis	\$3,150.00	\$262.53	\$3,150.30	\$3,156.00	100%
Hartford City	\$20,056.00	\$1,671.33	\$20,055.90	\$18,381.00	92%
Huntington Hope Rising	\$19,307.00	\$1,608.93	\$19,307.20	\$19,308.00	100%
Huntington Lancaster	\$8,893.00	\$741.06	\$8,892.70	\$7,015.80	79%
Indianapolis Calvary Family	\$4,009.00	\$334.06	\$4,008.70	\$4,008.99	100%
Indianapolis Central	\$8,887.00	\$740.59	\$8,887.10	\$4,800.00	54%
Indianapolis Divine Direction	\$4,500.00	\$375.00	\$4,500.00	\$1,350.00	30%
Indianapolis Encounter Assembly	\$1,484.00	\$123.63	\$1,483.60	\$1,488.00	100%
Indianapolis Evanston Ave.	\$3,236.00	\$269.69	\$3,236.30	\$750.00	23%
Indianapolis Monte de Sion	\$3,570.00	\$297.51	\$3,570.10	\$1,396.00	39%
Indianapolis One Multichurch Net.	\$994.00	\$82.83	\$994.00	\$0.00	0%
Indianapolis Saint Stephen	\$313.00	\$26.04	\$312.50	\$312.00	100%
Indianapolis Shalom	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	100%
Indianapolis Southview	\$17,879.00	\$1,489.94	\$17,879.30	\$17,880.00	100%
Indianapolis Trinity	\$115,764.00	\$9,646.97	\$115,763.58	\$115,764.00	100%
Jonesboro Westview	\$26,428.00	\$2,202.37	\$26,428.40	\$26,448.00	100%
Kingford Heights	\$2,952.00	\$245.98	\$2,951.70	\$2,952.00	100%
Kokomo Southdowns	\$4,096.00	\$341.33	\$4,096.00	\$4,096.00	100%
Lafayette Evergreen	\$11,663.00	\$971.88	\$11,662.50	\$11,928.00	100%

					-
Church	Annual Assessment	Monthly Assessment	Assessment Due to 4/30/23	Assessments Received to Date	% Received to Date
Lafayette The Branch	\$10,406.00	\$867.13	\$10,405.60	\$7,656.97	74%
Laketon	\$6,871.00	\$572.54	\$6,870.50	\$6,916.00	101%
LaOtto Cultivate	\$14,821.00	\$1,235.09	\$14,821.10	\$15,000.00	101%
Lapel Daybreak	\$7,070.00	\$589.14	\$7,069.70	\$0.00	0%
Lapel Fishersburg	\$5,400.00	\$449.97	\$5,399.60	\$5,400.00	100%
Larwill	\$3,124.00	\$260.33	\$3,123.90	\$3,120.00	100%
Lebanon	\$8,096.00	\$674.66	\$8,095.90	\$8,107.00	100%
Logansport The Bridge	\$6,581.00	\$548.42	\$6,581.00	\$6,576.00	100%
Marion Brinker Heights	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	100%
Marion Brookhaven	\$68,601.00	\$5,716.77	\$68,601.20	\$68,604.00	100%
Marion Chapel Pike *	\$25,742.00	\$2,145.13	\$25,741.50	\$25,741.50	100%
Marion College	\$154,268.00	\$12,855.67	\$154,268.07	\$154,294.00	100%
Marion Commoners	\$942.00	\$78.49	\$941.90	\$794.00	84%
Marion Hillside	\$16,906.00	\$1,408.83	\$16,905.90	\$16,908.00	100%
Marion Lakeview *	\$70,276.00	\$5,856.35	\$70,276.24	\$62,900.00	100%
Marion Nelson Street	\$5,996.00	\$499.69	\$5,996.30	\$6,000.02	100%
Marion The River	\$99,144.00	\$8,261.99	\$99,143.82	\$99,144.00	100%
Marion West 8th Street	\$5,908.00	\$492.36	\$5,908.30	\$6,929.37	117%
Merrillville ReThink	\$11,000.00	\$916.67	\$11,000.00	\$9,531.05	87%
Monon *	\$4,041.00	\$336.73			98%
Ministration Minis			\$4,040.80	\$3,970.10	
	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$3,768.90	100%
Muncie Memorial Drive	\$3,494.00	\$291.13	\$3,493.60	\$3,494.00	100%
Muncie Rising Hope	\$9,514.00	\$792.83	\$9,514.00	\$9,514.00	100%
New Carlisle	\$26,552.00	\$2,212.67	\$26,552.00	\$26,556.00	100%
New Castle Memorial	\$19,827.00	\$1,652.21	\$19,826.50	\$19,824.00	100%
New Castle Mt. Zion	\$25,223.00	\$2,101.91	\$25,222.90	\$25,176.00	100%
New Haven Impact	\$7,636.00	\$636.36	\$7,636.30	\$7,632.00	100%
Noblesville Circle of Hope *	\$21,217.00	\$1,768.04	\$21,216.50	\$15,099.87	100%
North Liberty Beaver Creek	\$5,919.00	\$493.23	\$5,918.70	\$5,916.00	100%
Pendleton Autumn Hills	\$750.00	\$62.50	\$750.00	\$0.00	0%
Plymouth	\$69,263.00	\$5,771.88	\$69,262.56	\$68,690.00	99%
Plymouth Shiloh	\$17,818.00	\$1,484.82	\$17,817.80	\$17,820.00	100%
Richmond Casa del Alfarero	\$4,405.00	\$367.06	\$4,404.70	\$2,480.00	56%
Richmond LifeSpring	\$132,322.00	\$11,026.81	\$132,321.72	\$132,324.00	100%
Roanoke Arise	\$1,379.00	\$114.92	\$1,379.05	\$0.00	0%
Rochester The Cross *	\$35,009.00	\$2,917.41	\$35,008.90	\$33,754.89	100%
Sheridan Six Points	\$32,044.00	\$2,670.31	\$32,043.70	\$29,370.00	92%
Shirley Grant City	\$1,839.00	\$153.21	\$1,838.50	\$2,000.00	109%
Silver Lake	\$2,147.00	\$178.93	\$2,147.20	\$3,027.53	141%
South Bend Sonlight Fellowship	\$5,311.00	\$442.60	\$5,311.20	\$3,986.60	75%
South Bend The Bridge Urban	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	100%
Speedway Way City	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	100%
Swayzee Sims	\$6,805.00	\$567.07	\$6,804.80	\$6,809.00	100%
Sweetser	\$12,116.00	\$1,009.68	\$12,116.20	\$12,120.00	100%
Tipton Ash Street	\$6,773.00	\$564.44	\$6,773.30	\$2,600.00	38%
Tipton Trinity	\$37,035.00	\$3,086.21	\$37,034.50	\$37,033.88	100%
Union City CrossRoads Church	\$70.00	\$5.81	\$69.70	\$116.00	166%
Wabash New Journey	\$24,298.00	\$2,024.81	\$24,297.70	\$24,300.00	100%
Wabash North	\$3,275.00	\$272.88	\$3,274.50	\$3,822.00	117%
Warsaw Pathway *	\$41,468.00	\$3,455.65	\$41,467.80	\$3,822.00	100%
Westfield One Church					100%
	\$1,009.00	\$84.12	\$1,009.48	\$1,008.00	
Winchester Union Street	\$2,773.00	\$231.11	\$2,773.30	\$350.00	13%
Woodburn Edgerton	\$13,680.00	\$1,139.96	\$13,679.50	\$13,679.51	100%
GRAND TOTAL	\$1,846,806.00	\$153,900.51	\$1,846,806.16	\$1,781,061.64	96%

# USF Assessments 2022-2023 (By Percentage)

#### \* Indicates Real-Time Tithe

Church	Annual Assessment	Monthly Assessment	Assessment Due to 4/30/23	Assessments Received to Date	% Received to Date
Union City CrossRoads Church	\$70.00	\$5.81	\$69.70	\$116.00	166%
Silver Lake	\$2,147.00	\$178.93	\$2,147.20	\$3,027.53	141%
Colfax	\$4,416.00	\$368.02	\$4,416.20	\$5,434.00	123%
Marion West 8th Street	\$5,908.00	\$492.36	\$5,908.30	\$6,929.37	117%
Wabash North	\$3,275.00	\$272.88	\$3,274.50	\$3,822.00	117%
Shirley Grant City	\$1,839.00	\$153.21	\$1,838.50	\$2,000.00	109%
Anderson Restoration	\$600.00	\$50.00	\$600.00	\$650.00	108%
Lafayette Evergreen	\$11,663.00	\$971.88	\$11,662.50	\$11,928.00	102%
Cicero United Family	\$6,687.00	\$557.28	\$6,687.40	\$6,831.00	102%
LaOtto Cultivate	\$14,821.00	\$1,235.09	\$14,821.10	\$15,000.00	101%
Laketon	\$6,871.00	\$572.54	\$6,870.50	\$6,916.00	101%
Indianapolis Encounter Assembly	\$1,484.00	\$123.63	\$1,483.60	\$1,488.00	100%
Hamlet Davis	\$3,150.00	\$262.53	\$3,150.30	\$3,156.00	100%
Lebanon	\$8,096.00	\$674.66	\$8,095.90	\$8,107.00	100%
Jonesboro Westview	\$26,428.00	\$2,202.37	\$26,428.40	\$26,448.00	100%
Marion Nelson Street	\$5,996.00	\$499.69	\$5,996.30	\$6,000.02	100%
Swayzee Sims	\$6,805.00	\$567.07	\$6,804.80	\$6,809.00	100%
Carmel Amistad Cristiana	\$9,391.00	\$782.58	\$9,391.00	\$9,396.00	100%
Albion	\$10,701.00	\$891.72	\$10,700.60	\$10,704.00	100%
Sweetser	\$12,116.00	\$1,009.68	\$12,116.20	\$12,120.00	100%
Bryant	\$20,910.00	\$1,742.50	\$20,910.00	\$20,916.00	100%
Elwood Main Street	\$16,856.00	\$1,404.68	\$16,856.20	\$16,860.00	100%
Fishers Waterline	\$27,390.00	\$2,282.52	\$27,390.20	\$27,396.00	100%
Fort Wayne Lifeway	\$28,446.00	\$2,370.50	\$28,446.00	\$28,452.00	100%
Marion College	\$154,268.00	\$12,855.67	\$154,268.07	\$154,294.00	100%
Frankfort Connecting Point	\$3,659.00	\$304.95	\$3,659.40	\$3,660.00	100%
New Carlisle	\$26,552.00	\$2,212.67	\$26,552.00	\$26,556.00	100%
Marion Hillside	\$16,906.00	\$1,408.83	\$16,905.90	\$16,908.00	100%
Plymouth Shiloh	\$17,818.00	\$1,484.82	\$17,817.80	\$17,820.00	100%
Muncie Memorial Drive	\$3,494.00	\$291.13	\$3,493.60	\$3,494.00	100%
Kingford Heights	\$2,952.00	\$245.98	\$2,951.70	\$2,952.00	100%
Wabash New Journey	\$24,298.00	\$2,024.81	\$24,297.70	\$24,300.00	100%
Lapel Fishersburg	\$5,400.00	\$449.97	\$5,399.60	\$5,400.00	100%
Indianapolis Calvary Family	\$4,009.00	\$334.06	\$4,008.70	\$4,008.99	100%
Hamilton	\$11,244.00	\$936.96	\$11,243.50	\$11,244.00	100%
Gas City Eastview	\$42,274.00	\$3,522.85	\$42,274.20	\$42,276.00	100%
Huntington Hope Rising	\$19,307.00	\$1,608.93	\$19,307.20	\$19,308.00	100%
Marion Brookhaven	\$68,601.00	\$5,716.77	\$68,601.20	\$68,604.00	100%
Indianapolis Southview	\$17,879.00	\$1,489.94	\$17,879.30	\$17,880.00	100%
Fort Wayne Three Rivers	\$23,231.00	\$1,935.93	\$23,231.10	\$23,232.00	100%
Greenfield Brown's Chapel	\$29,037.00	\$2,419.73	\$29,036.70	\$29,037.80	100%
Richmond LifeSpring	\$132,322.00	\$11,026.81	\$132,321.72	\$132,324.00	100%
Indianapolis Trinity	\$115,764.00	\$9,646.97	\$115,763.58	\$115,764.00	100%
Columbia New Hope	\$54,840.00	\$4,569.99	\$54,839.84	\$54,840.00	100%
Marion The River	\$99,144.00	\$8,261.99	\$99,143.82	\$99,144.00	100%
Woodburn Edgerton	\$13,680.00	\$1,139.96	\$13,679.50	\$13,679.51	100%
Marion Chapel Pike *	\$25,742.00	\$2,145.13	\$25,741.50	\$25,741.50	100%
Marion Lakeview *	\$70,276.00	\$5,856.35	\$70,276.24	\$62,900.00	100%
Mt. Etna Community Life *	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$3,768.90	100%
Noblesville Circle of Hope *	\$21,217.00	\$1,768.04	\$21,216.50	\$15,099.87	100%
Rochester The Cross *	\$35,009.00	\$2,917.41	\$35,008.90	\$33,754.89	100%

Church	Annual Assessment	Monthly Assessment	Assessment Due to 4/30/23	Assessments Received to Date	% Received to Date
Warsaw Pathway *	\$41,468.00	\$3,455.65	\$41,467.80	\$41,164.00	100%
Avon 317 Church	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,500.00	100%
Indianapolis Shalom	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	100%
Kokomo Southdowns	\$4,096.00	\$341.33	\$4,096.00	\$4,096.00	100%
Marion Brinker Heights	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	100%
Muncie Rising Hope	\$9,514.00	\$792.83	\$9,514.00	\$9,514.00	100%
South Bend The Bridge Urban	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	100%
Speedway Way City	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	100%
Elwood Central *	\$5,562.00	\$463.47	\$5,561.60	\$5,561.60	100%
Greenfield Harvest	\$41,636.00	\$3,469.68	\$41,636.20	\$41,636.00	100%
Anderson North	\$12,672.00	\$1,056.01	\$12,672.10	\$12,672.00	100%
Tipton Trinity	\$37,035.00	\$3,086.21	\$37,034.50	\$37,033.88	100%
Bluffton Sonlight	\$36,158.00	\$3,013.18	\$36,158.20	\$36,156.00	100%
New Castle Memorial	\$19,827.00	\$1,652.21	\$19,826.50	\$19,824.00	100%
Fairmount	\$27,221.00	\$2,268.43	\$27,221.20	\$27,216.00	100%
North Liberty Beaver Creek	\$5,919.00	\$493.23	\$5,918.70	\$5,916.00	100%
New Haven Impact	\$7,636.00	\$636.36	\$7,636.30	\$7,632.00	100%
Logansport The Bridge	\$6,581.00	\$548.42	\$6,581.00	\$6,576.00	100%
Larwill	\$3,124.00	\$260.33	\$3,123.90	\$3,120.00	100%
Westfield One Church	\$1,009.00	\$84.12	\$1,009.48	\$1,008.00	100%
Gas City Southside	\$6,610.00	\$550.81	\$6,609.70	\$6,600.00	100%
Indianapolis Saint Stephen	\$313.00	\$26.04	\$312.50	\$312.00	100%
New Castle Mt. Zion	\$25,223.00	\$28.04			100%
			\$25,222.90	\$25,176.00	99%
Plymouth	\$69,263.00	\$5,771.88	\$69,262.56	\$68,690.00	
Delphi Union Street	\$7,103.00	\$591.93	\$7,103.20	\$7,003.26	99%
Monon *	\$4,041.00	\$336.73	\$4,040.80	\$3,970.10	98%
Fairmount Back Creek	\$7,574.00	\$631.15	\$7,573.80	\$7,356.00	97%
Chesterfield Parkview	\$10,508.00	\$875.67	\$10,508.00	\$9,966.00	95%
Sheridan Six Points	\$32,044.00	\$2,670.31	\$32,043.70	\$29,370.00	92%
Hartford City	\$20,056.00	\$1,671.33	\$20,055.90	\$18,381.00	92%
Greentown	\$19,739.00	\$1,644.93	\$19,739.10	\$17,338.00	88%
Merrillville ReThink	\$11,000.00	\$916.67	\$11,000.00	\$9,531.05	87%
Marion Commoners	\$942.00	\$78.49	\$941.90	\$794.00	84%
Anderson Lone Oak	\$10,341.00	\$861.72	\$10,340.60	\$8,534.00	83%
Frankfort Templo de Poder	\$3,150.00	\$262.53	\$3,150.30	\$2,532.00	80%
Huntington Lancaster	\$8,893.00	\$741.06	\$8,892.70	\$7,015.80	79%
South Bend Sonlight Fellowship	\$5,311.00	\$442.60	\$5,311.20	\$3,986.60	75%
Lafayette The Branch	\$10,406.00	\$867.13	\$10,405.60	\$7,656.97	74%
Richmond Casa del Alfarero	\$4,405.00	\$367.06	\$4,404.70	\$2,480.00	56%
Indianapolis Central	\$8,887.00	\$740.59	\$8,887.10	\$4,800.00	54%
Indianapolis Monte de Sion	\$3,570.00	\$297.51	\$3,570.10	\$1,396.00	39%
Tipton Ash Street	\$6,773.00	\$564.44	\$6,773.30	\$2,600.00	38%
Indianapolis Divine Direction	\$4,500.00	\$375.00	\$4,500.00	\$1,350.00	30%
Anderson United	\$14,016.00	\$1,168.03	\$14,016.40	\$4,000.00	29%
Indianapolis Evanston Ave.	\$3,236.00	\$269.69	\$3,236.30	\$750.00	23%
Winchester Union Street	\$2,773.00	\$231.11	\$2,773.30	\$350.00	13%
Elkhart Cielos Abiertos	\$19.00	\$1.58	\$19.00	\$0.00	0%
Fort Wayne Level 13	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0%
Fowler Hope	\$1,477.00	\$123.05	\$1,476.60	\$0.00	0%
Indianapolis One Multichurch Net.	\$994.00	\$82.83	\$994.00	\$0.00	0%
Lapel Daybreak	\$7,070.00	\$589.14	\$7,069.70	\$0.00	0%
Pendleton Autumn Hills	\$750.00	\$62.50	\$750.00	\$0.00	0%
Roanoke Arise	\$1,379.00	\$114.92	\$1,379.05	\$0.00	0%
GRAND TOTAL	\$1,846,806.00	\$153,900.51	\$1,846,806.16	\$1,781,061.64	96%

# USF Assignments 2023-2024

#### \* Real Time Giving \*\* Developing Church

Church	Total Assessable Contribution Income	Annual Assessment	Monthly Assessment
Albion	\$95,550.00	\$8,601.00	\$716.78
Anderson Living Hope**	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Anderson Lone Oak	\$95,348.00	\$8,583.00	\$715.27
Anderson North	\$117,010.00	\$10,533.00	\$877.77
Anderson Restoration**	\$25,989.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Anderson United	\$114,649.00	\$10,321.00	\$860.06
Avon 317 Church**	\$98,092.00	\$4,330.00	\$360.85
Bluffton Sonlight	\$437,800.00	\$39,411.00	\$3,284.23
Bryant	\$176,000.00	\$15,844.00	\$1,320.29
Carmel Amistad Cristiana	\$77,518.00	\$6,978.00	\$581.51
Chesterfield Parkview	\$115,845.00	\$10,428.00	\$869.03
Cicero United Family**	\$67,763.00	\$1,600.00	\$133.34
Colfax	\$33,155.00	\$2,985.00	\$248.72
Columbia New Hope	\$601,856.00	\$52,392.00	\$4,366.00
Delphi Union Street	\$74,597.00	\$6,715.00	\$559.60
Elkhart Cielos Abiertos**	\$28,800.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Elwood Central* **	\$83,185.00	\$2,988.00	\$249.03
Elwood Main Street	\$180,042.00	\$16,207.00	\$1,350.62
Fairmount	\$274,951.00	\$24,751.00	\$2,062.59
Fairmount Back Creek	\$74,435.00	\$6,701.00	\$558.39
Fishers Waterline	\$300,665.00	\$27,066.00	\$2,255.49
Fort Wayne Level 13**	\$30,258.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Fort Wayne Lifeway	\$363,203.00	\$32,696.00	\$2,724.63
Fort Wayne Three Rivers	\$208,289.00	\$18,750.00	\$1,562.51
Fowler Hope**	\$6,910.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Frankfort Connecting Point	\$41,426.00	\$3,729.00	\$310.76
Frankfort Templo de Poder	\$38,358.00	\$3,453.00	\$287.75
Gas City Eastview	\$355,278.00	\$31,982.00	\$2,665.18
Gas City Southside	\$83,882.00	\$7,551.00	\$629.25
Greenfield Brown's Chapel	\$260,332.00	\$23,435.00	\$1,952.92
Greenfield Harvest**	\$470,969.00	\$37,897.00	\$3,158.05
Greentown	\$189,804.00	\$17,086.00	\$1,423.85
Hamilton	\$105,569.00	\$9,503.00	\$791.94
Hamlet Davis**	\$70,457.00	\$1,843.00	\$153.54
Hartford City	\$305,020.00	\$27,458.00	\$2,288.16
Huntington Hope Rising	\$224,186.00	\$20,181.00	\$1,681.77
Huntington Lancaster	\$81,195.00	\$7,309.00	\$609.10
Indianapolis Calvary Family	\$41,422.00	\$3,729.00	\$310.73
Indianapolis Central**	\$83,335.00	\$3,002.00	\$250.15
Indianapolis Divine Direction	\$45,000.00	\$4,051.00	\$337.58
Indianapolis Encounter Assembly**	\$11,265.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Indianapolis Evanston Ave.	\$33,672.00	\$3,031.00	\$252.60
Indianapolis Donte de Sion**	\$35,644.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Indianapolis Monte de Sion Indianapolis One Multichurch Network**	\$7,235.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Indianapolis Saint Stephen**	\$22,475.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Indianapolis Shalom	\$100,000.00	\$4,502.00	\$375.17
Indianapolis Southview	\$127,054.00	\$11,437.00	\$953.12
Indianapolis Southview	\$1,491,107.00	\$105,335.00	\$8,777.93
Jonesboro Westview	\$286,653.00	\$25,805.00	\$2,150.38
Kingford Heights**	\$43,480.00	\$0.00	\$2,150.38
Kingford Heights	\$53,496.00	\$4,816.00	\$0.00

Crossroads District Conference 2023			Page 27
Church	Assessable Income	Annual Assessment	Monthly Assessment
Lafayette Evergreen	\$91,856.00	\$8,269.00	\$689.07
Lafayette The Branch	\$70,599.00	\$6,355.00	\$529.61
Laketon	\$82,040.00	\$7,385.00	\$615.44
LaOtto Cultivate	\$150,000.00	\$13,503.00	\$1,125.25
Lapel Daybreak **	\$76,984.00	\$2,430.00	\$202.51
Lapel Fishersburg	\$47,644.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Larwill	\$24,199.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Lebanon	\$78,046.00	\$7,026.00	\$585.48
Logansport The Bridge **	\$68,578.00	\$1,673.00	\$139.45
Marion Brinker Heights**	\$16,795.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Marion Brookhaven	\$705,726.00	\$59,665.00	\$4,972.08
Marion Chapel Pike*	\$330,946.00	\$29,792.00	\$2,482.65
Marion College	\$2,569,559.00	\$133,291.00	\$11,107.58
Marion Commoners**	\$7,089.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Marion Hillside	\$160,945.00	\$14,488.00	\$1,207.36
Marion Lakeview*	\$666,250.00	\$56,901.00	\$4,741.74
Marion Nelson Street	\$63,005.00	\$5,672.00	\$472.64
Marion The River	\$1,320,650.00	\$96,809.00	\$8,067.41
Marion West 8th Street	\$57,501.00	\$5,176.00	\$431.35
Merrillville ReThink**	\$108,928.00	\$5,306.00	\$442.14
Monon*	\$44,166.00	\$3,976.00	\$331.32
Mt. Etna Community Life*	\$65,154.00	\$5,865.00	\$488.75
Muncie Memorial Drive	\$40,009.00	\$3,602.00	\$300.13
Muncie Rising Hope**	\$225,891.00	\$15,835.00	\$1,319.56
New Carlisle	\$200,000.00	\$18,004.00	\$1,500.33
New Castle Memorial	\$185,370.00	\$16,687.00	\$1,390.58
New Castle Mt. Zion	\$277,701.00	\$24,999.00	\$2,083.22
New Haven Impact **	\$68,480.00	\$1,665.00	\$138.71
Noblesville Circle of Hope*	\$146,388.00	\$13,178.00	\$1,098.15
North Liberty Beaver Creek	\$67,531.00	\$6,079.00	\$506.60
Pendleton Autumn Hills**	\$32,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Plymouth	\$830,950.00	\$68,433.00	\$5,702.76
Plymouth Shiloh	\$156,370.00	\$14,076.00	\$1,173.04
Richmond Casa del Alfarero	\$53,000.00	\$271.00	\$22.59
Richmond LifeSpring	\$1,743,810.00	\$117,975.00	\$9,831.28
Roanoke Arise Church**	\$115,430.00	\$5,891.00	\$490.92
Rochester The Cross*	\$313,086.00	\$28,184.00	\$2,348.67
Sheridan Six Points	\$338,515.00	\$30,473.00	\$2,539.43
Shirley Grant City**	\$14,905.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Silver Lake**	\$25,533.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
South Bend Sonlight Fellowship**	\$55,751.00	\$519.00	\$43.23
South Bend The Bridge Urban	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Speedway Way City	\$40,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Swayzee Sims	\$74,965.00	\$6,748.00	\$562.36
Sweetser	\$119,844.00	\$10,788.00	\$899.03
Tipton Ash Street	\$96,335.00	\$8,672.00	\$722.67
Tipton Trinity	\$334,306.00	\$30,094.00	\$2,507.85
Union City CrossRoads Church	\$14,994.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Wabash New Journey	\$260,000.00	\$23,405.00	\$1,950.43
Wabash North**	\$27,636.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Warsaw Pathway*	\$418,722.00	\$37,693.00	\$3,141.11
Westfield One Church**	\$194,338.00	\$12,994.00	\$1,082.86
Winchester Union Street	\$24,990.00	\$2,250.00	\$187.47
Woodburn Edgerton	\$113,457.00	\$10,213.00	\$851.12
GRAND TOTAL	\$21,707,191.00	\$1,637,326.00	\$136,443.89
elouine renation	₩21,707,171.00	¥1,007,020.00	<i>w</i> 100,770.07

DECEMBER 28-30 CINCINNATI, OHIO

FOLLOWCONFERENCE.ORG

STARTING AT

# 2028 OLLOPERENCE



INTERNATIONAL WESLEYAN YOUTH CONVENTION



wesleyan.org/preacher-sunday

September 2023

Every Wesleyan pulpit unleashing the gifts of women to preach the Gospel

Because both women and men are:

- Bearers of God's image
- Blessed to preach the Good News
- Entrusted with the Great Commission

Pray, Plan and Wait for it!

More details to be provided at District Conferences

#### Crossroads District of The Wesleyan Church District Ministries Fund Budget

Fiscal Year 2024

			FY2	4 Budget Final
Income				
4030 District Stewardship Fund	100% of actual	assessments	\$	559,500
4035 Great Comm. Transfer In			\$	200,000
4050 Miscellaneous Income			\$	-
4910 Interest & Dividends			\$	6,500
Total Income			\$	766,000
Expenses				
5000 Personnel Costs			\$	300,000
5110 Shared Services Exp			\$	19,500
5150 Honorariums			\$	12,000
5200 Office Space			\$	9,000
5230 Insurance - Auto			\$	3,200
5250 Missions Fund Transfer			\$	12,000
5300 Office Expenses			\$	10,000
5340 Telephone			\$	2,000
5350 Equipment Purchases			\$	4,000
5370 Website			\$	3,000
5380 Committee Expense			\$	8,000
5385 Hospitality/Fellowship			\$	25,000
5395 District Conference			\$	20,000
5410 Pastoral Emergency Care			\$	12,000
5500 Auto Expense - DS & ADS			\$	15,000
5520 Auto Accrual- DS & ADS			\$	12,000
5530 Seminar & Meeting Exp.			\$	2,000
5550 Travel (executive)			\$	10,000
6115 Training/Coaching			\$	15,000
6120 Revitalization Grants			\$	15,000
6310 Circuit Rider Expenses			\$	10,000
6210 Regional Leader Expenses			\$	30,000
6250 DBMD			\$	10,000
6260 Ordination			\$	3,000
6270 Gathering			\$	-
6010 Church Match Grants			\$	200,000
Total Expenses			\$	761,700
Net Income			\$	4,300

# Statistical Summary

		Persons	Total	Avg. Worship	Live Online		
Church	Baptisms	Saved	Membership	Attendance	Attendance	Indebtedness	USF Net
Albion	9	2	44	51	5	\$0.00	\$95,550.00
Anderson Lone Oak	0	0	29	39	0	\$0.00	\$95,348.00
Anderson North	6	3	46	50	5	\$209,327.00	\$117,010.00
Anderson Restoration	0	3	50	45	0	\$0.00	\$25,989.00
Anderson United	2	9	44	69	3	\$0.00	\$114,649.00
Avon 317 Church	4	3	37	54	0	\$0.00	\$98,092.00
Bluffton Sonlight	5	19	117	167	53	\$0.00	\$437,800.00
Bryant	0	5	73	109	15	\$0.00	\$176,000.00
Carmel Amistad	5	6	57	63	5	\$0.00	\$77,518.00
<b>Chesterfield Parkview</b>	0	2	26	45	13	\$0.00	\$115,845.00
Cicero United Family	11	5	16	65	25	\$179,042.00	\$67,763.00
Colfax	2	0	17	28	22	\$0.00	\$33,155.00
Columbia City New Hope	13	34	210	353	166	\$1,120,061.00	\$601,856.00
Delphi Union Street	5	7	36	47	3	\$0.00	\$74,597.00
Elkhart Cielos Abiertos	4	13	38	55	3	\$0.00	\$28,800.00
Elwood Central	1	3	45	62	12	\$140,000.00	\$83,185.00
Elwood Main Street	14	6	83	98	40	\$0.00	\$180,042.00
Fairmount	4	6	78	127	23	\$0.00	\$274,951.00
Fairmount Back Creek	1	1	22	33	5	\$0.00	\$74,435.00
Fishers One Multichurch Network	0	0	1	12	0	\$0.00	\$7,235.00
Fishers Waterline	6	5	78	83	21	\$0.00	\$300,665.00
Fort Wayne Level 13	2	1	25	31	5	\$147,239.00	\$30,258.00
Fort Wayne Lifeway	9	12	114	207	16	\$0.00	\$363,203.00
Fort Wayne Three Rivers	1	0	54	86	10	\$244,955.00	\$208,289.00
Fowler Hope	2	2	21	17	0	\$155,000.00	\$6,910.00
Frankfort Connecting Point	4	4	31	32	0	\$0.00	\$41,426.00
Frankfort Templo de Poder	0	8	76	68	56	\$0.00	\$38,358.00
Gas City Eastview	16	32	218	176	22	\$0.00	\$355,278.00
Gas City Southside	8	17	31	62	6	\$91,342.00	\$83,882.00
Greenfield Brown's Chapel	1	0	61	71	25	\$0.00	\$260,332.00
Greenfield Harvest	3	5	22	148	17	\$1,033,821.00	\$470,969.00
Greentown	0	0	80	69	3	\$0.00	\$189,804.00
Hamilton	9	5	26	62	16	\$0.00	\$105,569.00
Hamlet Davis	2	3	22	33	19	\$95,272.00	\$70,457.00
Hartford City	0	0	115	155	254	\$0.00	\$305,020.00
Huntington Hope Rising	14	13	75	145	14	\$106,800.00	\$224,186.00

Church	Baptisms	Persons Saved	Total Membership	Avg. Worship Attendance	Live Online Attendance	Indebtedness	USFNet
Huntington Lancaster	0	0	20	31	0	\$0.00	\$81,195.00
Indianapolis Calvary Family	0	0	51	35	40	\$40,000.00	\$41,422.00
Indianapolis Central	5	2	15	41	0	\$0.00	\$83,335.00
Indianapolis Divine Direction	0	5	70	44	10	\$0.00	\$45,000.00
Indianapolis Encounter Assembly	0	2	22	12	15	\$0.00	\$11,265.00
Indianapolis Evanston Avenue	2	2	45	30	10	\$0.00	\$33,672.00
Indianapolis Monte de Sion	4	3	20	50	0	\$0.00	\$35,644.00
Indianapolis Saint Stephen	2	4	35	25	0	\$0.00	\$22,475.00
Indianapolis Shalom	0	2	67	100	0	\$0.00	\$100,000.00
Indianapolis Southview	1	1	33	40	3	\$32,500.00	\$127,054.00
Indianapolis The Table	0	1	7	10	0	\$0.00	\$0.00
Indianapolis Trinity	5	13	241	635	437	\$0.00	\$1,491,107.00
Jonesboro Westview	19	3	106	155	12	\$305,500.00	\$286,653.00
Kingsford Heights	1	4	10	14	3	\$0.00	\$43,480.00
Kokomo Southdowns	0	1	24	14	0	\$0.00	\$53,496.00
Lafayette Evergreen	2	18	58	64	15	\$0.00	\$91,856.00
Lafayette The Branch	0	0	42	52	5	\$39,679.00	\$70,599.00
Laketon	1	5	41	47	0	\$0.00	\$82,040.00
LaOtto Cultivate	2	4	67	88	8	\$0.00	\$150,000.00
Lapel Daybreak	9	15	60	79	6	\$415,000.00	\$76,984.00
Lapel Fishersburg	0	0	7	25	0	\$0.00	\$47,644.00
Larwill	0	2	36	23	0	\$0.00	\$24,199.00
Lebanon	1	2	24	21	0	\$0.00	\$78,046.00
Logansport The Bridge	2	2	58	94	5	\$32,455.00	\$68,578.00
Marion Brinker Heights	1	3	15	25	100	\$0.00	\$16,795.00
Marion Brookhaven	7	10	268	483	37	\$470,000.00	\$705,726.00
Marion Chapel Pike	13	7	110	139	20	\$224,490.00	\$330,946.00
Marion College	19	63	503	767	323	\$2,879,966.00	\$2,569,559.00
Marion Commoners	2	1	3	9	0	\$0.00	\$7,089.00
Marion Hillside	12	3	75	150	250	\$0.00	\$160,945.00
Marion Lakeview	11	44	179	233	24	\$1,382,600.00	\$666,250.00
Marion Nelson Street	2	0	30	25	0	\$0.00	\$63,005.00
Marion The River	73	306	197	936	73	\$3,139,653.00	\$1,320,650.00
Marion West 8th Street	1	1	27	33	0	\$0.00	\$57,501.00
Merrillville ReThink	3	6	1	80	10	\$28,767.00	\$108,928.00
Monon	0	11	6	17	5	\$0.00	\$44,166.00
Mt Etna Community Life	0	1	47	52	0	\$238,543.00	\$65,154.00
Muncie Memorial Drive	3	4	22	26	8	\$0.00	\$40,009.00

#### Page 32

		Persons	Total	Avg. Worship	Live Online		
Church	Baptisms	Saved	Membership	Attendance	Attendance	Indebtedness	USF Net
Muncie Rising Hope	9	30	207	160	55	\$0.00	\$225,891.00
New Carlisle	2	8	57	90	30	\$300,000.00	\$200,000.00
New Castle Memorial	12	6	60	88	45	\$0.00	\$185,370.00
New Castle Mt Zion	13	11	61	145	0	\$0.00	\$277,701.00
New Haven Impact	1	1	22	39	5	\$0.00	\$68,480.00
Noblesville Circle of Hope	1	13	145	96	86	\$0.00	\$146,388.00
North Liberty Beaver Creek	0	2	17	32	8	\$0.00	\$67,531.00
Pendleton Autumn Hills	0	0	1	30	0	\$0.00	\$32,000.00
Plymouth	22	13	278	423	72	\$2,656,076.00	\$830,950.00
Plymouth Shiloh	0	9	72	96	7	\$0.00	\$156,370.00
Richmond Casa del Alfarero	0	3	16	35	50	\$0.00	\$53,000.00
<b>Richmond Lifespring</b>	65	27	387	906	237	\$374,461.00	\$1,743,810.00
Roanoke Arise	3	12	24	65	5	\$296,829.00	\$115,430.00
Rochester The Cross	18	14	108	154	23	\$0.00	\$313,086.00
Sheridan Six Points	27	45	116	175	15	\$0.00	\$338,515.00
Shirley Grant City	0	0	15	16	58	\$0.00	\$14,905.00
Silver Lake	0	3	25	12	0	\$0.00	\$25,533.00
South Bend Sonlight	0	0	17	30	0	\$0.00	\$55,751.00
South Bend The Bridge	6	26	54	36	40	\$0.00	\$0.00
Speedway Way City	0	0	2	40	5	\$0.00	\$40,000.00
Swayzee Sims	0	4	12	26	7	\$0.00	\$74,965.00
Sweetser	6	6	55	53	0	\$30,375.00	\$119,844.00
Tipton Ash Street	6	6	22	30	35	\$0.00	\$96,335.00
Tipton Trinity	21	32	108	211	75	\$0.00	\$334,306.00
Union City CrossRoads	6	7	6	32	7	\$0.00	\$14,994.00
Wabash New Journey	13	17	68	158	11	\$140,000.00	\$260,000.00
Wabash North	0	0	0	10	0	\$0.00	\$27,636.00
Warsaw Pathway	9	15	135	242	27	\$99,217.00	\$418,722.00
Westfield One Church	8	20	2	89	11	\$0.00	\$194,338.00
Winchester Union Street	2	18	11	25	32	\$32,450.00	\$24,990.00
Woodburn Edgerton	4	15	53	74	14	\$0.00	\$113,457.00
TOTAL	620	1148	6914	11339	3261	\$16,681,420.00	\$21,707,191.00

# District Ministry Reports

ASSISTANT DS REPORT	34	
CIRCUIT RIDER REPORTS	36	
DBMD REPORT	40	
CHURCH MULTIPLICATION	42	
DISTRICT INTERCESSION	43	
GLOBAL PARTNERS	44	
CHILDREN'S MINISTRIES	46	
YOUTH MINISTRIES	47	
SENIOR ADULT MINISTRIES	48	
INTERCULTURAL MINISTRY	49	

# Assistant DS Report

It has been a joy to serve the Crossroads District as an Assistant District Superintendent during the 2022-2023 conference year in my role as the point leader for *Next Level Church Experience* and vice chair of the District Board of Administration (DBA) and the District Board of Ministerial Development (DBMD).

#### **Next Level Church Experience**

We offered two *Next Level Church Experience* events this past year. The first Next Level event was held in September. The following churches participated: Cicero United Family, Gas City Eastview, Huntington Hope Rising, Indianapolis Monte de Sion, Merrillville RE.THINK Church

After *Next Level* in September, we evaluated participant feedback and conducted our own internal evaluation of the event. After doing so, we revised *Next Level* significantly to deliver higher value to local church pastors and leadership teams.

The new and improved version of *Next Level* was offered for the first time in February with the following churches participating: Albion, North Liberty Beaver Creek, Elwood Central, Indianapolis Calvary Family, Indianapolis Divine Direction, Lapel Daybreak, South Bend The Bridge

Even though *Next Level* was redesigned this year, the experience remains focused on delivering the following outcomes:

- Increase the spiritual fervency of pastors and lay leaders leading to higher levels of spiritual fervency across the church.
- Improve the experience for children and adults in the primary corporate gathering of the church.
- Design and execute a plan for first impressions and newcomer integration.
- Ensure that each church has a discipleship pathway that includes the first steps, next steps, and a plan for ongoing discipleship.
- Build and implement a comprehensive outreach strategy that helps a church engage with its community, meet real needs, attract people to Jesus, and share the gospel in personal and corporate settings.

The new and improved version of Next Level features the following modules:

- Climbing Higher: Becoming a Next Level Church
- Seeking God with Spiritual Intensity
- Experiencing God in Worship
- Building an Effective Kids Ministry
- Reaching Your Community
- Making Disciples Who Make Disciples
- Next Steps to Go to the Next Level

#### Crossroads District Conference 2023

After each module, pastors and church leaders engage in guided coaching conversations focused on developing actionable next steps to implement the teaching in their local church. To aid in implementation, the district underwrites the cost of providing a coach for each pastor and church for the six months following the event. In addition, the district offers \$1,000 implementation grants to provide resourcing for one or more of the action items that are developed in conjunction with the coach.

The following churches received *Next Level* Implementation Grants during this past fiscal year: Albion, Cicero United Family, Elwood Central, Gas City Eastview, Huntington Hope Rising, Indianapolis Calvary Family, and Lapel Daybreak.

If you or your church would like to learn more about Next Level, visit: www.crossroadsdistrict.org/nextlevel

#### **District Boards**

During this past conference year, I was honored to serve as the vice-chair of the Crossroads District DBA and DBMD. In my role as vice-chair of the DBA, I led the annual review of the District Superintendent which incorporated feedback and insight from Lead Pastors across the district and the members of the DBA. The result of this process was the creation of an actionable plan for our DS to continue improve and develop his excellent leadership of our district team. In addition to my work on the DBA, I assisted Rev. Carla Working as she leads our DBMD. It is a joy to come alongside the emerging ministers in the Crossroads District to guide and support the women and men that God has called to be equipping ministers in The Wesleyan Church.

Thank you for the allowing me the opportunity to serve in this capacity. I pray that God will add his favor to our work in the Crossroads District so we can effectively develop leaders, revitalize churches, and multiply kingdom communities to reach the 3 million Hoosiers that currently have no religious affiliation!

Radically Hopeful,

1. 1 101

Rev. Dr. Chris Williams Assistant District Superintendent

### Circuit Rider Report Rev. Mark Atkinson

**Responsibility:** Evangelism (Encourage the church and the pastor to be more effective connecting their communities to Jesus!)

**Churches Visited:** Fort Wayne Level 13, Delphi Union Street, Greentown, Wabash New Journey, North Liberty Beaver Creek, New Castle Memorial, Indianapolis Southview, Sweetser, Muncie Memorial Drive, Indianapolis Evanston, Marion West Eighth Street, Hamlet Davis, Roanoke Arise, Sheridan Six Points, Lapel Fishersburg, Hamilton, Lancaster, Merrillville ReThink

#### Here are the metrics that I consider at each church:

#### 1. Neighborhood (outsider) Friendly

Were the facilities well-kept and up to date? Did the signage reveal important information that welcomed the community? Was parking available for guests close to the building? Were there greeters in the parking lot and at the doors? Was there a hospitable environment for all ages in the building?

#### 2. Atmosphere (not stressful, loving, to each other and outsiders)

Did the atmosphere develop anticipation? Did the greeters smile? Did the church people greet guests in a kind and friendly manner? Were coffee and donuts available? Did people actually sing during the service?

#### 3. Pastoral Example

Did the church people exhibit respect for the pastor? Did the pastor welcome guests in a personal way? Is the pastor active in the community? Did the pastor make eye contact and learn names? Did the pastor exhibit an understanding of what the people were going through? Did he show that in his prayer? Did it appear that the pastor had delegated well enough to be free to love on the people?

#### 4. Lay Leadership

Are the lay people involved in the community? Did the lay people exhibit delightful ownership of the ministry? Did the lay people reach out to the community? Are there church activities that are outreach focused?

#### 5. Child Friendly

Are there obvious ministries focused on children? Were the children excited to get to the children's ministry area? Was the signage appealing to children? Was there a safe play area? Were the children's ministry staff pleasant and welcoming? Was the children's ministry mentioned in the adult service, in the prayer, in the preaching, in the announcements? Were there check-in systems and safe procedures in place?

#### 6. Music

Was the music connected to the theme of the day? Were those sharing (musicians & vocalists) joyful and worshipful? Did the congregation connect with the music? Did the music stir my heart? Was there an element of excellence exhibited?

After sharing within those metrics, I share two or three recommendations. I must say that I have enjoyed sensing God's presence in each church. I praise the Lord for the opportunity to serve in this capacity this past year!

Respectfully submitted,

Mark A. Atkinson Circuit Rider

### Circuit Rider Report *Rev. Dr. Jim Lo*

It has truly been a privilege and joy to serve as a "circuit-rider' this past year.

In this role I spoke in 17 churches.

Above these opportunities of sharing as a circuit-rider I also...

- ...did weekend seminars on spiritual warfare.
- ...did seminars on evangelism and discipleship.
- ...spoke and taught on prayer
- ...spoke at our district sponsored "Celebration of Holiness" on "prayer and holiness"
- ...preached at mission conferences

God is working in the Crossroads District.

- One of the blessings of being a circuit-rider is hearing pastors share about how God is moving in powerful ways.
- Though COVID did affect many of our churches, adversely, many of the congregations I met with are reporting "wonderful gains".
  - > Over and over I heard testimonies of those getting saved
  - > How thrilling it is to hear about new converts being baptized and being added to the church

This year I have made it a point to prayer-walk the area around some of our churches. When I visit a church seek to get there early enough to walk and pray over part of the community that surrounds the church. In Anderson, where I reside, I have been prayer-walking/running some of our churches in Anderson and Chesterfield.

A while ago, Dr Mark Gorveatte asked me if I had prayer-walked one of "our" churches in Anderson. I was able to tell him that I had and was continuing to do so. In a follow up meeting we had, Dr. Mark talked about me possibly making myself available to churches in the district which would like guidelines/teachings on prayer walking. I am happy and willing to do this.

Though I feel worship styles and preaching are important, the key to church "success" comes from God. Prayer-walking/running shows our need and dependence upon God to do His miracle in the hearts of those in a community.

#### Through this report I want you to know that if you would like teachings on...

- ...spiritual warfare (weekend seminar)
- …prayer/prayer walking
- ...outreach

I am willing to help and teach. My email address is jim.lo@indwes.edu.

I am so thankful for the blessed opportunity to serve as one of the Crossroads District Circuit Riders!

Rev. Dr. Jim "Umfundisi" Lo+ Circuit Rider

## Circuit Rider Report Rev. Neftali Lopez

What an exciting experience it has been for me to serve as a "circuit-rider' for the Hispanic churches this past year. My wife, Rev. Grace Lopez, and I visited 6 of our Hispanic churches bringing greetings from the District and a message of unity and encouragement.

Rev. Grace Lopez greets them as the Crossroads District FLAMA Coordinator, offering ministerial training to those key leaders who are feeling called to serve in ministry.

We are grateful for the hospitality that pastors and their families have shown and we feel honored to be part of the move of God in our Hispanic congregations.

The churches we visited this year include:

- Iglesia Monte de Sion Indianapolis, IN
- Iglesia Cielos Abiertos Elkhart, IN
- United Church (Hispanic ministry) Anderson, IN
- Iglesia Templo de Poder Frankfort, IN
- Iglesia Casa del Alfarero Richmond, IN
- Iglesia Amistad Cristiana Carmel, IN

As a result, we can confirm what our DS consistently repeats: "God is on the move" within our district.

Dr. Mark Gorveatte asked me to write a situational report of every visit. I was able to report to him the great testimonies we saw as well as the growth opportunities they have. We are asking for prayer partners to join us in praying for our Hispanic churches as we seek to organize an event where we can all join in worship, possibly a retreat or camp meeting.

Throughout our visits, we witness different worship styles and leaders. We felt encouraged to see how God is raising a new generation of Hispanic leaders who are responding to God's call. "Por tanto, rogad al Señor de la mies que envíe obreros a su mies" (Mt. 9:38)

My wife and I praise God for the opportunity to serve Him in the Crossroads District as a Circuit Rider and to be able to pray and participate in the formation of future leaders in The Wesleyan Church.

Love in Christ,

Chaplain Neftali Lopez Circuit Rider

### Circuit Rider Report Rev. Dr. David Smith

The work of a **Circuit Rider** in the Crossroads District is NOT work. Let me use the same words that YHWH gave when He told Adam to "care" and "tend" the garden. (Gen 2:15). Yes. That is what I get to do. It is nothing like work. It's pure joy.

What is a Circuit Rider **Church Visit**? Two Sundays a month I am given the honor to travel across our District and visit local congregations and their pastors. I get to witness the work of the Lord played out in a variety of venues by a wide range of Holy Communities. Typically, the District Office makes the initial connection with the pastor, months in advance of my visit. Then, several weeks before the date, I will email or call to set up details for my Church Visit. We decide if I will be preaching during that visit (yes, call that my "caring" and "tending" the garden). Plus, I love to include a meeting the Local Board of Administration for a brief stand of conversation so they can place another face and name within our connectional system. The final act of the visit's preparation is to determine if the Pastor's family and I might go out to dinner following service. (Thank you Dr. Gorveatte for the gift of reimbursement!)

**On the day of the Church Visit**, I intentionally try to arrive 30-45 minutes early. It gives me the chance to receive a tour from the pastor through the facilities, which often includes a history lesson of the building projects which created this worship center and of course the names of people who acted out of love and Kingdom sacrifice. As our last act of preparation, we will finalize the flow of the worship service and my role in it. Then, we have plenty of time to greet people coming into Church for worship. Following the Service, we are often the last to leave Church as we depart for a meal together. In the Gospel of Luke, Jesus loves on people more across a table than from a pulpit. That is what I pray for during these meals...and opportunity to "share grace" with one another. Can you guess. I LOVE being a Circuit Rider.

#### True^North: Disciple-making in the Word.

May I offer one more opportunity to the District. Over the last 10 years I have been putting together material and corresponding training to teach laity in the local church how to read Scripture. Specifically, I long to equip people with the tools to read-interpret-apply the Word in Bible study groups. It is also in these groups that they hold one another accountable to what they have learned. It's not fellowship groups as much as they might be seen as Wesley-style class meetings or Bands. My goal is not merely to teach people the contents of the Word but to create a culture of radical transformation. The Word becomes authoritative and the Spirit Himself is the true shaper of their souls and minds. If you church is interested in the material or for me to come to your church for a True^North weekend conference, please see www.TrueNorthBibleStudy.com. It's all free.

Rev. Dr. David Smith Circuit Rider

## District Board of Ministerial Development Report

In September of this conference year, I was honored to accept the invitation to chair the DBMD. Dr. Chris Williams graciously invited me to move into this leadership position after he provided such excellent leadership to the members of the DBMD and the students we serve. Dr. Williams had instituted changes to our process that allowed me to step into the position with ease. I am grateful for his continued leadership as he serves the DBMD as our Vice-Chair

Throughout this year, the Crossroads District DBMD has come alongside over 90 individuals seeking credentials in The Wesleyan Church. This year we are recommending 14 individuals for ordination, 4 of which are transferring from other denominations. Our DBMD utilized Zone and Regional committees to conduct interviews with every person within the process. There were countless hours of preparation and prayer represented in each of those annual interviews.

I believe the DBMD is one of the most important boards within The Wesleyan Church. The DBMD is "responsible for the examination and recommendation to the district conference of all candidates for ordination, license, commission, ministerial study, restoration, or transfer from another denomination" (The Discipline, 1375). It is the responsibility of the DBMD to ensure that each person we work with has the grace, gifts, fruit and abiding sense of a divine call. As we have served together, each member of the DBMD has demonstrated an unwavering commitment to The Wesleyan Church and its ministers. For this I am extremely grateful.

This past year, 51 women and men came together to serve as the DBMD. I have been honored to serve alongside them as they give numerous hours to the work of "equipping the people for acts of service" (Ephesians 4:12). I want to thank each member of the DBMD for their faithfulness and investment. Each person served received encouragement, direction, accountability and support from our DBMD members. I could not begin to count the number of hours each of you sacrificially gave to The Wesleyan Church through your service. As a special word of thanks, I would like to thank Rev. Bob Burchell (Region 1 Chair), Rev. Clifton Ashlock (Region 2 Chair), and Rev. Dan Fisher (Region 3 Chair) for leading your geographic regions with integrity and humility.

There are times when the world tries to paint a bleak picture of the future for the church. I believe that picture is wrong. After sitting alongside my DBMD colleagues at annual interviews and listening to the women and men pursuing a life of vocational ministry, I am convinced that the future of the church is full of hope. The DBMD has had the blessing to walk alongside ministers of the Gospel who are committed to serving Jesus faithfully and compelled to preach that God is not only a God of forgiveness. He is also a God of hope and transformation. These women and men are called to lead the church, and I am grateful for the opportunity to be part of this journey with them.

Because He Lives,

Rev. Carla Working DBMD Chair

#### 2022-2023 DISTRICT BOARD OF MINISTERIAL DEVELOPMENT MEMBERS:

Rev. Carla Working (Chair); Rev. Dr. Chris Williams (Vice-Chair); Rev. Kalina Carlson (Secretary); Rev. Robert Burchell III (Region 1 Chair), Rev. Lane Sander (Region 1 Secretary), Rev. Clifton Ashlock (Region 2 Chair), Rev. Daniel VanDuyne (Region 2 Secretary), Mr. Ken Ehman (Region 2 Member), Rev. Daniel Fisher (Region 3 Chair), Mrs. Pam Conley (Region 3 Secretary), Rev. Ed Friberg (Region 3 Member)

#### **ORDAINED MINISTERS**

The following names have been confirmed for ordination:

Amy Biegel	Samuel Kauerauf	Nicholas Reynolds	Naomi Small	
Joshua Fox	Jonathan Kulaga	Mason Rosado	Mason Yopp	
Allison Francis	Nathaniel Lee	Ruben Santos		
Benjamin Jones	Jonathan Noggle	Robert (Tom) Simons		

#### LICENSED MINISTERS

The following names have been confirmed for credentialing as licensed ministers:

Amy Allison	Trevor Dailey	Kimberly Hewitt	Josh Lavender
Kaitlyn Altman	Madeline Delgado	Logan Hoffman	Esther Osborne
Steven Arnett	Samantha Freds	Bradley Holmes	Preston Trent
Michael A Colaw	Lisa Glunt	Matt Horne	Aaron Wilkinson
Jessica Cordes	Alexander Henry	Christopher Hurst	Michael Wood

#### MINISTERIAL STUDENTS

The following names have been confirmed for credentialing as ministerial students:

Maria Alavez	Hermilo Cruz-Carlos	Duane Hammonds	Sarah Klassen	Dorothea Staten
Paul Baker	Alex Cusumano	Jennifer Harper	Zachery Koch	Noland Stewart
Destiny Bess	Austin Farlow	Dana Hernandez	Alexander Lawrence	Rose Thompson
Dale Bradford	Makayla Fulton	Caleb Hines	Nathan Mabry	Patrick Tierney
Nicholas Brock	Yesenia Gaytan-Garcia	Steve Johnson	Kayla Patton	Raegan Tippey
Leslie Colaw	Eli Gilmore	Grace Kann	Mallory Retherford	Lennaire Vaughn
Tisha Connell	Tomasa Granados	Timothy Kelly	Kyle Sanders	Katie Wing
Amy Cruez	Jorden Green	Matthew Kennedy	Yechan Son	
				_

#### ORDAINED MINISTERS IN PROCESS OF DENOMINATIONAL TRANSFER (non-voting)

#### **ANNUAL SERVICE REPORTS**

Annual Service Reports were not received from the following ministers:

Irma Alberto (1)	J. Eric Crisp (1)	Yesenia Gaytan-Garcia (1)	Joshua Light (1)	Preston Trent (1)
Dimas Alberto (1)	Amy Cruez (1)	Tomasa Granados (2)	Jack Marshall (2)	Richard Van Vuren (1)
Stephan Binns (2)	Hermilo Cruz-Carlos (1)	Dana Hernandez (1)	Douglas Sharrard (1)	Ronald Weller (3)
Dale Bradford (1)	Alex Cusumano (1)	Matthew Kennedy (1)	Noland Stewart (1)	Nick Wilson (1)
Laura Catlin (1)	Jorge Escalante (1)	Josh Lavender (1)	Benjamin Thomas (3)	
Leslie Colaw (1)	Timothy Gallant (1)	O. Allen Laws (1)	Rose Thompson (1)	-

# **District Church Multiplication Report**

Our vision by the year 2025 is to launch 100 new kingdom communities, mobilize 1,000 new disciple-making leaders, and baptize 10,000 new Christ followers.

For the past four years I have had the blessing to serve as the Director of Multiplication for the Crossroads District. In this time, I have shared the joys of new churches being planted and the heartbreak of watching some congregations close. Can a denomination become a movement again? I believe the answer is a resounding YES! Is it possible for our District to realize its vision? I believe the answer is also "Yes." However, to accomplish each question we must heed the words of evangelist Gypsy Smith (1860-1947) "Go home. Take a piece of chalk. Draw a circle around yourself. Then kneel down and pray, 'O Lord, revive everything inside this circle." In my report last year, I shared the following quote, "Remember this, if denominations want to be more effective, they have to become more like networks. If networks want to last, they have to become more like denominations. When denominations develop a network-like laser focus on multiplication through evangelism, mission, and church planting, they thrive. When networks build appropriate structure and define belief systems, they survive. They are two sides of the same coin, and we need them both as we move forward." This year our District has responded to this quote by proposing a lowering of the Crossroads District USF amount by 1.0%. In turn, each church will be tasked to create a new budget line item of "Church Multiplication Fund." My hope and prayer is that this new budget line item would help stir multiplication and movement thinking towards new planting initiatives in our District and beyond.

Here are some amazing highlights from this past year:

- The River Church in Marion Matt Trexler. This "older" church plant is 15 years old, renovated an old school building, and just celebrated over 2,000 people in attendance for Easter!
- Trinity Church in Indianapolis Mike Colaw. This well established church took Andy Remiersma under their wing and sent Andy out to plant ONE Church in Westfield. Both churches are reaping amazing disciple-making and multiplying fruit from this. ONE Church has celebrated thirteen baptisms and thirty-five salvation decisions for Christ.
- Rising Hope Church in Muncie Michael Hewitt. As one of the districts newer churches, RH started a Church Planting Residency. RH is getting ready to host their third church planting resident family (Janiel & Leana Caraballos) with plans to plant a bilingual church in Anderson, IN on September 15, 2024. RH launched their first church campus with Pastor Marcos & Banesa Cruz in Sevilla, Spain last October.
- In May of 2022 the Crossroads Church Planting Network was born. The CPN is now poised to champion it first church plant. Please welcome Janiel & Leana Caraballos as our newest church planters.
- 317 Church in Avon Seth Bye. Crossroads District in their short time have made major improvements to their building and a new church family has been birthed. Praise the Lord for three salvations and four baptisms in less than a year. 317 Church is also looking to add one more to their number as Seth and Kassidy are expecting!

Currently, here is where we stand since 2016:

- 20 New Kingdom Communities (16 Church Plants, 3 Adopted Churches, and 1 New Campus)
- 748 New Disciple-Making Leaders (156 this year alone)
- 9,008 New Christ-Followers (1,148 this year alone)

As I praise God for the multiplication in the Crossroads District this past year, I am believing the best is yet to come! May God bless our dangerous prayers as we band together to see more churches planted and disciples making disciples that make disciples. If your church is interested in learning more about how you can partner with the CPN to help your church, please feel free to contact me or any of the founding network leaders Jerome Bell, Seth Byes, John Hannan, Michael Hewitt, John Miller, Aldean Pablo, and Mike Weller.

The CPN exists to Guide, Empower, and Champion the call of every church planter. Within the Crossroads District for established and developing churches we want to help you Facilitate multiplication, Always pray, Collaborate generously, Encourage the planting Family Generously.

Building the Kingdom Together in Christ,

Rev. Michael Hewitt District Church Multiplication Champion

#### Page 43

## **District Intercession Report**

E.M Bounds wrote these profound words about prayer,

"Prayer makes a godly man, and puts within him the mind of Christ, the mind of humility, of self-surrender, of service, of pity, and of prayer. If we really pray, we will become more like God, or else we will quit praying."

As I continue my journey of understanding prayer at a deeper level, I am continually reminded that the success of ministry depends upon 'us' praying. I keep a "prayer notebook", recording prayer requests that I receive. I am always amazed to recognize how God does 'answer' prayer. I receive prayer requests from many in the district-from both pastors and 'laity'. The requests are recorded in my prayer notebook and I seek to faithfully pray for God to do His mighty work so that He is the One who is glorified.

A practice I have gotten into is to pray for the pastors in our district by name and for their churches. Often times I do this on Saturday mornings, asking the Lord – Almighty to do wonders during services that will be taking place on Sunday. Being a 'circuit rider' for the district has revealed to me specific prayer requests churches have, spurring me onwards to pray for them.

I also pray for candidates for ordination, who are going through the DBMD process.

Sometimes, when I sense the Lord moving me to do so, I will send a note to pastors letting them know that God has me praying for them... to encourage them and for them to know that they have not been forgotten.

I have sent some of the requests, upon permission from the "presenter", to Crossroad District Prayer Warriors. What a comfort to have so many in our district understand the importance of prayer and knowing that they are praying.

The following quotes on prayer touch my heart deeply as it pertains to our calling as servants of God. They motivate me to keep praying.

"When we work, we work; but when we pray, God works." - Max Lucado

"God will do nothing on earth except in answer to believing prayer." - John Wesley

"Prayer is not just getting ready for Christian service. Prayer is Christian service." - Adrian Rodgers

In the service of the KING of kings,

Rev. Dr. Jim "Umfundisi" Lo+

## **Global Partners Report**

Greetings Fellow Sojourners in Christ!

#### BANGLADESH

It was an honor and privilege for Carol and I to return to Bangladesh this April for the 10th Anniversary Celebration for The Wesleyan Church of Bangladesh. Due to covid, a team from Crossroads District had not visited Bangladesh for three years. It was great to once again catch up with our old friends and partners in ministry! There have been some significant changes in these past three years, but Christ's Church there has continued to thrive and multiply! Rev. Tom Ensz has been appointed by Global Partners for oversight of Bangladesh and the South Asia Region. Rev. George Bose was elected the new District Superintendent as Rev. Joshe Bose transitioned into the role of South Asia Development Coordinator with Global Partners.

We are excited about the report from the District Conference of 9 new churches, 274 professions of faith and baptisms, with a total now of 65 churches and 2500 total members. Also, 2 Pastors were ordained and 1 transfer ordained Pastor from the Church of the Nazarene, as well as 11 licensed ministers. Bangladesh set a goal of 20 new church plants in 2023-24. This is truly amazing when the Church started in 2012 with 11 churches. It has been a blessing to have a front row seat these past 11 years to see this growth! To God be the Glory!

#### MOZAMBIQUE

We are so thankful for God's sustaining provision for His church, and more specifically for the mighty Kingdom work going on in the nation of Mozambique. In a letter from Filipe Macaringue, President of Xai-Xai Bible College, he states, "We give thanks to the Lord for showing His grace in our lives and in the life of the college." Classes are going well as 28 students are enrolled at the Xai-Xai campus, with many of their families living on the college grounds.

Jim and Karen Pickett are still our Global Partners missionaries serving as teachers to the students at the college. Jim has remained on-site as Karen has needed to be stateside for a season. She is still able to maintain much of her teaching schedule through use of the internet. Continue to pray for them through this challenging season of their lives.

Pastor Abel Nove continues to lead the COW (College on Wheels) project in the northern regions of the country. College on wheels travels to the more remote provinces so the students don't have to incur the hardship of trying to make it to the south where Xai-Xai is located.

We are so thankful for the visionary leadership of the Crossroads District. Your continued prayers and financial support are greatly appreciated as we strive to expand God's Kingdom into the here, near, far and hard places!

In Service to the King of Kings!

Rev. Steve Mathews & Dr. Rich Schenck District Global Partners Co-Directors



## **CROSSROADS** 2022 DISTRICT REPORT



Trinity Wesleyan Church (Indy)	\$37,300.00
The River Community Church	\$36,625.00
Lifeway Wesleyan Church	\$35,400.00
One Multichurch Network	\$25,800.00
Lakeview Wesleyan Church (Marion)	\$25,480.00





MISSIONARIES





STEAM **AMPLIFY** 

Partner with every Wesleyan missionary serving internationally by giving a monthly gift of any amount. Join the TEAM today! gponline.org/teamamplify

## MISSION AMPLIFIED 38 COUNTRIES

Albania Amanah Asia Australia Bangladesh Cambodia **Central Europe** Croatia Czech Republic East Asia **Eastern Europe** Ecuador El Salvador Fotizo Guvana Haiti Ibero-America Japan Karis

Macedonia Mexico Mozambique Myanmar Nepal Nicaragua Nune Pakistan Panama Papua New Guinea Poland Russia Sierra Leone South Asia Sri Lanka **Turkic/Arabic** Ukraine Waha Zambia

Countries/regions shown in bold above are not shown on the map to protect the missionaries there.

Numbers are based on reports submitted to Global Partners from January-December 2022, and they represent missionaries and/or projects supported by churches within the district. Per capita rank is based on 2022 attendance.

## Next Gen - Children's Ministries Report

Summer 2022 kicked off with some wonderful camp opportunities for our children across the district. Between 3 different multi-church overnight camps, family camp and a few more day camp options, hundreds of our district children were able to enjoy some version of camp this past summer. This coming summer looks to be every bit as exciting for the children across the district. I continue to be a part of the leadership team for Fairmount Kids Camp as well as Family Camp and have been happy with the involvement at both camps.

Throughout the year, I have met, had phone conversations with many children's ministry leaders across the district to try and ascertain a good direction forward for our district regarding future training opportunities. I was able to speak at the district children's ministry training event held at Shiloh Park for the north district of the Nazarene Church in hopes that we could potentially develop a partnership in training and leadership development for children's ministry.

Jackie Kinney (Chapel Pike) is joining with me to make connections with every church across the district so we can develop cohorts for children's ministry leaders. We believe that the best way forward as a denomination is to pour into our next generation now so we can build a stronger church for tomorrow.

Respectfully Submitted,

Rev. Michele Henry District Children's Ministry Director michele.henry@brookhavenwesleyan.org

## Next Gen - Youth Ministries Report

This past year our district students and youth leaders participated in various summer camps, the District All-Nighter, and conferences.

The summer held numerous opportunities for students to attend camps across our district, including but not limited to 3Fires, Fairmount, and NTS at Indiana Wesleyan. Shoutout to all our district leaders and camp directors who faithfully continue to put together summer camps in a way that allow students to safely experience a valuable part of student discipleship!

One of my personal highlights this past October was the opportunity to attend the first annual District Youth President retreat in Destin, FL. During this 3 day retreat, DYPs from across the country gathered to brainstorm and collaborate on ideas for FOLLOW Conference and to share ideas of how we each minister to our district youth and leaders. We also spent a day learning and discussing how to continue navigating conversations about human sexuality with students and leaders in a way that points them back to Scripture and adequately addresses the questions students are wrestling with today.

After the start of the new year, I enjoyed meeting with some newer youth leaders and pastors in our district. God is preparing some incredible young leaders and placing a burden for our students on their hearts, and it is exciting to hear their passion for where God has placed each of them!

In February, we gathered once again for our annual District All-Nighter in Ft. Wayne. We had 427 students and 83 adult leaders from over 20 churches across our district participate in the event this year. Special thanks to Lane Sander for his continued help with this event. Also special thanks to IWU for providing a student ministry team to lead worship and representatives to promote IWU Fusion.

Looking ahead, we are excited about the many opportunities that are available to both our district students and leaders. This summer, several camp options are once again being made available across our district. I hope to also provide more opportunities for youth leaders to connect, especially with other leaders near them. My goal as DYP is to Promote (events), Provide (support & opportunities), and Pray for our district leaders. I look forward to continuing to meet and minister to more of my brothers and sisters serving our students over the coming year!

Rev. Jessica Folz District Youth President

## Senior Adult Ministries Report

This year has been another year given to extensive discussion and research into the interests of our Crossroads Senior Adults. Following several gatherings with interested groups of retired and soon-to-be retired people, the following potential activities have been identified as having significant interest.

(Please know that in conjunction with these events, we will be seeking opportunities to serve others in underserved communities. It is yet to be determined just what this will look like BUT this service will be a component of our ministry.)

#### SELF-TRANSPORT GROUP ACTIVITIES:

- Hymn Sing and Dinner (Trinity Indy, College Wesleyan Marion, and Others)
- Conner Prairie for Balloon Ride and Concert
- Dinner Theatre (Beef N Boards and elsewhere...)

#### ONE DAY BUS TRIPS:

- Cincy Reds
- Speedway Museum and Meal
- Victory Field Game
- State Park for Picnic Lunch and Games
- Auburn Car Museum
- Connor Prairie Events and Concert

#### ONE OVERNIGHT BUS TRIP:

- Cincy Reds Game and Underground Railroad
- Shipshewana Concert and Meal
- Ark Experience and Creation Museum
- Ohio River Cruise
- Brown County

#### 2024 - 2027 POTENTIAL ROAD TRIPS:

- NYC: Ball games, Broadway Theatre, 9/11 Museum
- Pigeon Forge: Gospel Quartet Convention and Dollywood
- Branson, MO: Assorted Theatre and other Venues
- Nashville, TN: Grand Ole Opry Show and City Tour
- Niagara Falls: Area Attractions
- Washington, DC: 4th of July Celebrations and Monuments Tour

Your input, expressions of interest and opportunities for interaction are welcome. Please reach out as we seek to serve the Lord and seniors together!

Rev. C. K. Chitty Senior Adult Ministry Director 317-910-5525 - ckchitty@gmail.com

# Task Force Report - Intercultural Ministry

The Intercultural Ministry Task Force were charged with the following by the Crossroads District Board of Administration at the close of the 2021 Conference year as follows:

- To assess current competency, design strategies, and provide practical tools for improving our intercultural effectiveness across the Crossroads District.
- At the conclusion two years, the Task Force are to present a summary report with recommendations to the DBA no later than April 30, 2023.
- Toward that end, the Intercultural Ministry Task Force has met multiple times over these last two years and reported back to the DBA on April 20, 2023.

#### Summary of our Report and Recommendations Approved by the DBA

There is a growing gap between the gospel and our cultures. The Gospel Gap requires a Kingdom Force which is multigenerational, multiethnic and multi-economic, women and men, lay and clergy, everywhere to everywhere. We must intentionally mobilize each of these Kingdom Force groups, as we:

- Develop local churches as laboratories for modeling inclusion rather than exclusion.
- Rejuvenate the Church through intercultural understanding birthed in learning from the Word of God, prayer, and practicing the sacraments.
- Launch Focus Groups to meet in various regions to provide ministry development opportunities for greater exposure and appreciation of intercultural ministry.
- Strategically coordinate multi-ethnic gatherings to create a more intercultural understanding.

Toward that end, the following tools and findings were developed by this Task Force:

- Intercultural Skills Inventory was presented to the 2021 District Conference.
- Intercultural Skills Inventory Questionnaire Results were reviewed and reported on Graphs.
- Resources for Church Leaders: Bridging the Cultural Divide PowerPoint Presentation by Dr. Yamil Acevedo.
- Crossroads District Demographic Snapshot.

We proposed the following recommendations in order to take practical steps of implementation toward Intercultural Ministry for Crossroads District churches and communities as follows:

- To raise sensitivity among predominately white Anglo churches in areas of strong ethnicity. Based on the demographic study presented to our Task Force, 1/3 of those predominately white Anglo churches are in strong ethnic areas. We are encouraged to celebrate churches growing and making strides in intercultural relationships, as we set a goal for the number of churches we would like to partner with in underserved communities in order to empower them. Underserved areas are those where there is scarcity in access to education, transportation, health food options, health care, Social services, and safety. Studies show that by the year 2052, the nation will be composed of non-Anglo ethnicity.
- To encourage Pastors and key leaders to be part of the communities where these intercultural ministries are being targeted. This includes developing individual friendships & relationships utilizing the Intercultural Skills Rubric previously shared. We recommend that pastors partner with community organizations to strive for more intercultural awareness and sensitivity. To strive for racial and intercultural understanding by building bridges and encouraging bridge events. By targeting churches in communities where there is ethnic strength, we can tap into opportunities to extend the reach of those churches leading to new church plants. We will then be celebrating church planting while making strides in cross-cultural growth.
- To develop as a team 2-3 local churches that will serve as models/prototypes of this intercultural ministry initiative with a \$5,000.00 Matching Grant provided as an incentive. We will then invite a group of churches into this newly developed learning community starting after the 2024 District Conference.
- In order to sustain the implementation steps summarized in this strategy, the Intercultural Task Force has transitioned to an Intercultural Ministry Team for the next two years, with an evaluation by the DBA at the one year mark.

Crossroads District Intercultural Ministry Team:

Dr. Rich Schenck, Chair	Rev. Stephen Nelson
Dr. Yamil Acevedo	Rev. Mike Schultz
Rev. Barry Dixon	Rev. Adriana Zarate
Rev. Theo Griffin	

# Pastoral Placements 2023/2024

Initial Appt	Church (*Developing Church or Plant)	Pastors and Next Vote / Review Year
2021	Albion	Samuel Maddox Jr., Pastor (review 2027)
2023	Anderson Living Hope *	Jerrold Alexander, Pastor
2022	Anderson Lone Oak	Jerome Bell, Pastor (vote 2024)
2018	Anderson North	David Shafer, Lead Pastor (vote 2024) Trevor Dailey, Assistant Pastor James Stamper, Assistant Pastor
2021	Anderson Restoration *	Michael Weller, Pastor
2019	Anderson United	Joseph Jackson, Lead Pastor (vote 2025) Ana Armiger, Assistant Pastor Jeremy Armiger, Assistant Pastor Nick Wilson, Assistant Pastor
2021	Avon 317 Church *	Seth Bye, Pastor
2004	Bluffton Sonlight	Lyle Breeding, Lead Pastor (vote 2026) John Moyer, Assistant Supply Pastor Lane Sander, Assistant Pastor
2003	Bryant	Paul Van Cise, Lead Pastor (review 2024) Joseph Schmit, Assistant Pastor Patrick Tierney, Assistant Supply Pastor
2022	Carmel Amistad	Magda (Lilly) Kurker, Pastor
2021	Chesterfield Parkview	Cliffton Ashlock, Pastor (vote 2026)
2017	Cicero United Family *	Allen Gross, Pastor Stephen Keith, Sr., Assistant Pastor
2018	Colfax	Daniel Clark, Lead Pastor (vote 2024)
2017	Columbia City New Hope	Shane Wilson, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Jessica Cordes, Assistant Pastor Christopher Hurst, Assistant Pastor
2007	Delphi Union Street	Daniel Fisher, Pastor (review 2025)
2018	Elkhart Cielos Abiertos *	Jose Argenis Cardenas, Supply Pastor Jose Guerrero, Assistant Supply Pastor
2022	Elwood Central *	Jon Noggle, Pastor
2013	Elwood Main Street	Timothy Becker, Pastor (review 2027) Alexander Henry, Assistant Pastor
2012	Fairmount	Jeffrey Luedtke, Lead Pastor (review 2026) Jared Kaufman, Assistant Pastor Amy Luedtke, Assistant Pastor
2003	Fairmount Back Creek	Benjamin Parker, Pastor (review 2027)
2019	Fishers One Multichurch Network *	David Drury, Pastor
2020	Fishers Waterline	Scott Rhyno, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Elizabeth Rhyno, Assistant Pastor Laura Walls, Assistant Pastor
2021	Fort Wayne Level 13 *	Michael Henry, Pastor
2023	Fort Wayne Lifeway	Andrew Jellison, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Richard Fletcher, Assistant Pastor Dean Forbes, Assistant Pastor Bradley Holmes, Assistant Pastor Gary Livengood, Assistant Pastor Robert Simons, Assistant Pastor
2014	Fort Wayne Three Rivers	Kyle Horton, Lead Pastor (review 2026) Kalina Carlson, Assistant Pastor
2017	Fowler Hope *	Judith Hatt, Pastor
2014	Frankfort Connecting Point	Alan Downing, Pastor (review 2026)
2001	Frankfort Templo de Poder	Calimerio Rodriguez, Pastor

2022	Gas City Eastview	Noah Farmer, Lead Pastor (vote 2024) Madeline Delgado, Assistant Pastor Kenneth Dykhoff, Assistant Pastor Trevor O'Dell, Assistant Pastor
2013	Gas City Southside	Brent Miller, Pastor (review 2027)
2019	Greenfield Brown's Chapel	Theodore Griffin, Lead Pastor (vote 2025) Benjamin Wade, Assistant Pastor
2023	Greenfield Harvest *	Scott Ferguson, Pastor
2015	Greentown	Eric Roemer, Lead Pastor (vote 2025) Kaitlyn Altman, Assistant Pastor Mason Rosado, Assistant Pastor
2003	Hamilton	David Leitzel, Pastor (vote 2026)
2018	Hamlet Davis *	Matthew Ohime, Pastor
2022	Hartford City	Joshua Fox, Pastor (vote 2024)
2018	Huntington Hope Rising	Zachary Working, Lead Pastor (review 2025) Angela Spangler, Assistant Pastor Carla Working, Assistant Pastor Mason Yopp, Assistant Pastor
2023	Huntington Lancaster	Ronald Forsythe, Pastor (review 2027)
2010	Indianapolis Calvary Family	Barry Dixon Sr., Lead Pastor (vote 2024) Joyce Dixon, Assistant Pastor Gregory Lismon, Assistant Supply Pastor
2002	Indianapolis Central *	Darrel Herring, Supply Pastor
2022	Indianapolis Divine Direction	Gawin Anderson, Supply Pastor
2019	Indianapolis Encounter Assembly *	Craig Thurmon, Sr., Pastor
1995	Indianapolis Evanston Avenue - Haitian - Hispanic	James Weinmann, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Dimas Alberto, Assistant Pastor Irma Alberto, Assistant Pastor
2023	Indianapolis Monte de Sion *	Grace Lopez, Supply Pastor
2017	Indianapolis Saint Stephen *	Ervin Webster, Supply Pastor
2019	Indianapolis Shalom *	Benjamin Tuimuk, Supply Pastor
2021	Indianapolis Southview	Nathan Richardson, Pastor (review 2027)
2023	Indianapolis The Table *	Andrea Shaull, Pastor
2011	Indianapolis Trinity - East Fishers Campus - Garfield Park Campus - Mizo Campus	Michael K. Colaw, Lead Pastor (review 2025) Jorge Escalante, Assistant Pastor Zulema Escalante, Assistant Pastor Matthew Hines, Assistant Pastor Catherine Howie, Assistant Pastor Joshua Lavender, Assistant Pastor Michael Schultz, Assistant Pastor Michael Summers, Assistant Pastor Khamh Tin Uk, Assistant Pastor AJ Wilk, Assistant Pastor
2013	Jonesboro Westview	Ryan Budde, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Mark Deisler, Assistant Pastor Brian Holland, Assistant Pastor Cody Kohler, Assistant Pastor Nicholas Reynolds, Assistant Pastor
2013	Kingsford Heights *	Jere Gowin, Pastor
1993	Kokomo Southdowns	Mark Rennaker, Lead Pastor (review 2025) Ronald Hurlocker, Jr., Assistant Pastor
1974	Lafayette Evergreen	Joseph Park Jr., Lead Pastor (review 2026) Gary Oglesby, Assistant Pastor
2022	Lafayette The Branch	Philip Carder, Pastor (vote 2024) Naomi Small, Assistant Pastor
2014	Laketon	David Cox, Pastor (vote 2025)
2011	LaOtto Cultivate	Aaron Lee, Lead Pastor (vote 2025) Stephanie Morris, Assistant Pastor

e 52		Crossroads District Conference 202
2018	Lapel Daybreak *	Andrew Cole, Lead Pastor Kevin Bragg, Assistant Pastor Richard Cole, Assistant Pastor Preston Trent, Assistant Pastor
2016	Lapel Fishersburg *	Robert Summitt, Pastor
2000	Larwill *	Thomas Beck, Pastor
1995	Lebanon	Morris Jones, Pastor (review 2026)
2012	Logansport The Bridge *	Zachary Szmara, Pastor
2022	Marion Brinker Heights *	Duane Cragun, Pastor
2013	Marion Brookhaven	Tony Bye, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Joel Gearhart, Assistant Pastor Michele Henry, Assistant Pastor David Hines, Assistant Pastor Emily Hines, Assistant Pastor Yechan Son, Assistant Supply Pastor John Walton, Assistant Pastor
2022	Marion Chapel Pike	Joshua Bowlin, Lead Pastor (vote 2024) Andrew Kinney, Assistant Pastor
2001	Marion College	Steven DeNeff, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Carl (Chip) Bos III, Assistant Pastor Vickie Conrad, Assistant Pastor Allison Francis, Assistant Pastor Roland (Beau) Hamner IV, Assistant Pastor C. Ethan Linder, Assistant Pastor Jordan Rife, Assistant Pastor Emily Vermilya, Assistant Pastor Aaron Wilkinson, Assistant Pastor
2020	Marion Commoners *	Jeffrey Brady, Pastor
1992	Marion Hillside	Gary Bingham, Pastor (vote 2026) Jessica Teegarden, Assistant Pastor
2020	Marion Lakeview	Christopher Williams, Lead Pastor (vote 2026) Jessica Folz, Assistant Pastor Christian Kelley, Assistant Pastor Jared Webb, Assistant Pastor
2023	Marion Nelson Street	Timothy Witte, Pastor (review 2027) Tisha Connell, Assistant Supply Pastor
2008	Marion The River - Chesterton Campus	Matthew Trexler, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Amy Biegel, Assistant Pastor Duane Hammonds, Assistant Supply Pastor Stephen Howlett, Assistant Pastor Samuel Kauerauf, Assistant Pastor Kaleb Wakeman, Assistant Pastor
2008	Marion West 8th Street	Daniel Van Cise, Pastor (review 2026)
2016	Merrillville ReThink *	Marc Ulrich, Pastor
2022	Monon	Bradford Snyder, Pastor (vote 2024)
2022	Mt Etna Community Life	Michael Gallant, Pastor (review 2026)
2021	Muncie Memorial Drive	Eric George, Pastor (review 2027)
2017	Muncie Rising Hope *	Michael Hewitt, Lead Pastor Kimberly Hewitt, Assistant Pastor
1995	New Carlisle	Donald Bayne, Jr., Lead Pastor (vote 2025) Andrew Colaw, Assistant Pastor
-	New Castle Memorial	In Hands of DBA
2011	New Castle Mt Zion	Steve Arnett, Pastor (vote 2026) Teresa Hester, Assistant Pastor
2013	New Haven Impact *	Kory Christensen, Lead Pastor Matthew Kennedy, Assistant Supply Pastor
2008	Noblesville Circle of Hope - Beech Grove Campus - Fountain of Life Campus - Rey de Gloria Campus	Carolyn Schenck, Co-Pastor (review 2026) Richard Schenck, Co-Pastor (review 2026) Steven Russell, Assistant Pastor Adriana Zarate, Assistant Pastor R. Nicolas Zarate, Assistant Pastor
2019	North Liberty Beaver Creek	Benjamin Jones, Pastor (vote 2025)
2021	Pendleton Autumn Hills *	Jerome Bell, Pastor

Jasi Jaus	District Conference 2023		Page
2023	Plymouth	Christopher Taylor, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Taylor Hulse, Assistant Pastor Levi Lehman, Assistant Pastor	
2023	Plymouth Shiloh	Edward Friberg, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Michael A. Colaw, Assistant Pastor	
2019	Richmond Casa del Alfarero *	Claudia Ruiz, Pastor	
2023	Richmond LifeSpring - South Campus	Jacob Gibson, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Josh Fakhoury, Assistant Pastor Joshua Keesling, Assistant Pastor Ashley Lee, Assistant Pastor Nathaniel Lee, Assistant Pastor Stephen Mathews, Assistant Pastor Nancy Pike, Assistant Pastor Daniel Van Duyne, Assistant Pastor	
2021	Roanoke Arise *	Aldean Pablo, Lead Pastor Amy Allison, Assistant Pastor Kayla Patton, Assistant Supply Pastor	
2021	Rochester The Cross	Martin Furrow, Jr., Pastor (review 2027)	
2018	Sheridan Six Points	Scott McDermid, Lead Pastor (vote 2024) Lisa Glunt, Assistant Pastor	
2020	Shirley Grant City *	Ronald Ferguson, Pastor	
2016	Silver Lake *	Duane Seitz, Pastor	
2006	South Bend Sonlight *	Gregory Holmes, Pastor	
2018	South Bend The Bridge *	Terry Vaughn, Supply Pastor Lennaire Vaughn, Supply Pastor	
2018	Speedway Way City *	John Miller, Pastor	
1987	Swayzee Sims	Brian Williams, Pastor (review 2025)	
2013	Sweetser	Matthew Stewart, Lead Pastor (review 2027) Kyle Sanders, Assistant Supply Pastor Raegan Tippey, Assistant Supply Pastor	
2023	Tipton Ash Street	Jerry Smith, Supply Pastor (vote 2024)	
2012	Tipton Trinity	Johnnie Blair Jr., Lead Pastor (review 2026) Laura Catlin, Assistant Pastor Christine Ryan, Assistant Pastor Brandon Shroyer, Assistant Pastor Michael Wood, Assistant Pastor	
2019	Union City CrossRoads *	John Hannan, Jr., Pastor	
2020	Wabash New Journey	Robert Tippey, Lead Pastor (review 2026) Megan Cox, Assistant Pastor Jason Tash, Assistant Pastor	
-	Wabash North *	In Hands of DBA	
2015	Warsaw Pathway	Jarod Osborne, Lead Pastor (vote 2025) Samantha Freds, Assistant Pastor Esther Osborne, Assistant Pastor Ruben Santos, Assistant Pastor	
2021	Westfield ONE Church *	Andrew Riemersma, Pastor	
1997	Winchester Union Street	Randy Yaryan, Pastor (review 2027)	
2002	Woodburn Edgerton	David Dignal, Pastor (review 2024)	

# Ministerial Appointments 2023/2024

### **Ordained Ministers**

#### **GENERAL OFFICIALS**

Wayne Schmidt	
---------------	--

**General Superintendent** 

#### DISTRICT SERVICE

Mark Gorveatte	District Superintendent
David Smith	Itinerant Bible Teacher

#### **DENOMINATIONAL SERVICE**

Matthew Aukerman	Missionary
Philip Gormong	Global Partners
Ed Love	Church Multiplication & Discipleship
Larry Moore	Wesleyan Investment Foundation
Johanna Rugh	Education & Clergy Development
David Scott	Missionary
lan Swyers	Global Partners
Carla Working	Education & Clergy Development

#### **EDUCATORS IN WESLEYAN SCHOOLS**

Matthew Beck	Wesley Seminary
John Drury	Indiana Wesleyan University
Patrick Eby	Wesley Seminary
Jonathan Kulaga	Indiana Wesleyan University
Larisa Levicheva	Wesley Seminary
James Lo	Indiana Wesleyan University
Alexander Mandura	Wesley Seminary
Jonathan Morgan	Indiana Wesleyan University
Luis Penaranda	Wesley Seminary
Kenneth Schenck	Indiana Wesleyan University
Keith Springer	Indiana Wesleyan University
Andrea Summers	Indiana Wesleyan University
Jeremy Summers	Indiana Wesleyan University
David Swisher	Indiana Wesleyan University
James R Vermilya	Indiana Wesleyan University
Lisa Willey	Indiana Wesleyan University
James (Jay) Wise	Indiana Wesleyan University

#### **CHAPLAINS**

Mark Bardsley	Marion Police Department
Shawnda Bilbee	Marion General Hospital
Robert Burchell III	Indiana Wesleyan University
William Croto III	Miami Correctional Facility
Marvin Ensley III	Brighton Hospice
Derek Hansen	Riverview Health
Neftali Lopez	Indiana Wesleyan University
Jeffrey Luttrell	Family Life Care
Virginia Soultz	Heritage Pointe U.M. Mem. Home
Allen Wright	VNA Hospice

#### **PASTORAL & LOCAL SERVICE**

PASTORAL & LOC	ALSERVICE
Dimas Alberto	Indianapolis Evanston Avenue
Irma Alberto	Indianapolis Evanston Avenue
Jerrold Alexander	Anderson Living Hope
Ana Armiger	Anderson United
Jeremy Armiger	Anderson United
Clifton Ashlock	Chesterfield Parkview
Donald Bayne	New Carlisle
Thomas Beck	Larwill
Timothy Becker	Elwood Main Street
Jerome Bell	Anderson Lone Oak, Pendleton Autumn Hills
Amy Biegel	Marion The River
Gary Bingham	Marion Hillside
Johnnie Blair	Tipton Trinity
Carl Bos	Marion College
Joshua Bowlin	Marion Chapel Pike
Jeffrey Brady	Marion Commoners
Kevin Bragg	Lapel Daybreak
Lyle Breeding	Bluffton Sonlight
Ryan Budde	Jonesboro Westview
Seth Bye	Avon 317 Church
Tony Bye	Marion Brookhaven
Philip Carder	Lafayette The Branch
Kalina Carlson	Fort Wayne Three Rivers
Laura Catlin	Tipton Trinity
Kory Christensen	New Haven Impact
Judith Chroniak-Hatt	Fowler Hope
Daniel Clark	Colfax
Andrew Colaw	New Carlisle
Michael K Colaw	Indianapolis Trinity
Andrew Cole	Lapel Daybreak
Richard Cole	Lapel Daybreak
Vickie Conrad	Marion College
David Cox	Laketon
Megan Cox	Wabash New Journey
Robert Cragun	Marion Brinker Heights
Mark Deisler	Jonesboro Westview
Steven DeNeff	Marion College
David Dignal	Woodburn Edgerton
Barry Dixon	Indianapolis Calvary Family
	Indianapolis Calvary Family
Joyce Dixon	Frankfort Connecting Point
Alan Downing David Drury	Fishers One Multichurch Network
Kenneth Dykhoff	Gas City Eastview
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Jorge Escalante	Indianapolis Trinity
Zulema Escalante	Indianapolis Trinity
Josh Fakhoury	Richmond Lifespring
Noah Farmer	Gas City Eastview
Ronald Ferguson	Shirley Grant City
Scott Ferguson	Greenfield Harvest
Daniel Fisher	Delphi Union Street
Richard Fletcher	Fort Wayne Lifeway
Jessica Folz	Marion Lakeview
Dean Forbes	Fort Wayne Lifeway
Ron Forsythe	Huntington Lancaster
Joshua Fox	Huntington Lancaster Hartford City
	Huntington Lancaster

#### **Crossroads District Conference** 2023

Martin Furrow	Rochester The Cross
Michael Gallant	Mt Etna Community Life
Joel Gearhart	Marion Brookhaven
Eric George	Muncie Memorial Drive
Jacob Gibson	Richmond Lifespring
Jere Gowin	Kingsford Heights
Theodore Griffin	Greenfield Brown's Chapel
Allen Gross	Cicero United Family
Beau Hamner	Marion College
John Hannan	Union City CrossRoads
Michael Henry	Fort Wayne Level 13
Michele Henry	Marion Brookhaven
Teresa Hester	New Castle Mt Zion
Michael Hewitt	Muncie Rising Hope
David Hines	Marion Brookhaven
Emily Hines	Marion Brookhaven
Matthew Hines	Indianapolis Trinity
Brian Holland	Jonesboro Westview
Gregory Holmes	South Bend Sonlight
Kyle Horton	Fort Wayne Three Rivers
Catherine Howie	Indianapolis Trinity Morion The Diver
Stephen Howlett	Marion The River
Taylor Hulse Ronald Hurlocker	Plymouth Kokomo Southdowns
	Kokomo Southdowns
Joseph Jackson Andrew Jellison	Anderson United Fort Wayne Lifeway
Benjamin Jones	North Liberty Beaver Creek
Morris Jones	Lebanon
Samuel Kauerauf	Marion The River
Jared Kaufman	Fairmount
Joshua Keesling	Richmond Lifespring
Stephen Keith	Cicero United Family
Christian Kelley	Marion Lakeview
Andrew Kinney	Marion Chapel Pike
Cody Kohler	Jonesboro Westview
Magda Kurker	Carmel Amistad
Aaron Lee	LaOtto Cultivate
Ashley Lee	Richmond Lifespring
Nathaniel Lee	Richmond Lifespring
Levi Lehman	Plymouth
David Leitzel	Hamilton
C. Ethan Linder	Marion College
Gary Livengood	Fort Wayne Lifeway
Grace Lopez	Indianapolis Monte de Sion
Amy Luedtke	Fairmount
Jeffrey Luedtke	Fairmount
Samuel Maddox Jr.	Albion
Stephen Mathews	Richmond Lifespring
Scott McDermid	Sheridan Six Points
Brent Miller	Gas City Southside
John Miller	Speedway Way City
Stephanie Morris	LaOtto Cultivate
Jonathan Noggle	Elwood Central
Trevor O'Dell	Gas City Eastview
Gary Oglesby	Lafayette Evergreen
Matthew Ohime	Hamlet Davis
Jarod Osborne	Warsaw Pathway
Aldean Pablo	Roanoke Arise
Joseph Park	Lafayette Evergreen
Benjamin Parker	Fairmount Back Creek
Nancy Pike	Richmond Lifespring
Mark Rennaker	Kokomo Southdowns
Nicholas Reynolds	Jonesboro Westview

	Page 55
Elizabeth Rhyno	Fishers Waterline
Scott Rhyno	Fishers Waterline
Nathan Richardson	Indianapolis Southview
Andrew Riemersma	Westfield One Church
Jordan Rife	Marion College
Calimerio Rodriguez	Frankfort Templo de Poder
Eric Roemer	Greentown
Mason Rosado	Greentown
Claudia Ruiz	Richmond Casa del Alfarero
Steven Russell	Noblesville Circle of Hope
Christine Ryan	Tipton Trinity
Lane Sander	Bluffton Sonlight
Ruben Santos	Warsaw Pathway
Carolyn Schenck	Noblesville Circle of Hope
Richard Schenck	Noblesville Circle of Hope
Joseph Schmit	Bryant
Mike Schultz	Indianapolis Trinity
Duane Seitz	Silver Lake
David Shafer	Anderson North
Andrea Shaull	Indianapolis The Table
Brandon Shroyer	Tipton Trinity
Robert Simons	Fort Wayne Lifeway
Naomi Small	Lafayette The Branch
Bradford Snyder	Monon
Angela Spangler	Huntington Hope Rising
James Stamper	Anderson North
Matthew Stewart	Sweetser
Michael Summers	Indianapolis Trinity
Robert Summitt	Lapel Fishersburg
Zachary Szmara	Logansport The Bridge
Jason Tash	Wabash New Journey
Christopher Taylor	Plymouth
Jessica Teegarden	Marion Hillside
Craig Thurmon	Indianapolis Encounter Assembly
Khamh Tin Uk	Indianapolis Trinity
Robert Tippey	Wabash New Journey
Matthew Trexler	Marion The River
Marc Ulrich	Merrillville ReThink
Daniel Van Cise	Marion West 8th Street
Paul VanCise	Bryant
Daniel VanDuyne	Richmond Lifespring
Emily Vermilya	Marion College
Benjamin Wade	Greenfield Brown's Chapel
Kaleb Wakeman	Marion The River
Laura Walls	Fishers Waterline
John Walton Marc Watkins	Marion Brookhaven Marion Lakeview
	Marion Lakeview Marion Lakeview
Jared Webb	
James Weinmann	Indianapolis Evanston Avenue Anderson Restoration
Michael Weller	
AJ Wilk Brian Williams	Indianapolis Trinity
Brian Williams	Swayzee Sims Marion Lakeview
Christopher Williams Nick Wilson	Anderson United
Shane Wilson	Columbia City New Hope
	Marion Nelson Street
Timothy Witte	Marion Nelson Street Huntington Hope Rising
Carla Working	
Zachary Working	Huntington Hope Rising
Randy Yaryan Mason Yopp	Winchester Union Street Huntington Hope Rising
Adriana Zarate	Noblesville Circle of Hope
Ramon Zarate	Noblesville Circle of Hope
	Nonestine on the of Hope

#### **EVANGELISTIC SERVICE**

Kenneth Gates

Ken Gates Ministries International

#### **INTERCHURCH SERVICE**

Anita Bosworth	World Gospel Mission
Duane Brown	One Mission Society
Michael Brown	Wished, Inc.
Rick Carder	Youth For Christ
Dirk Case	Youth For Christ
Robert Hallett	TLC Ministries
Cynthia Helvie	TEAM
Michael Helvie	TEAM
Donald Howell	Deep Tree
David Kelly	Wellsprings of Freedom
Leanne Ketcham	Anderson University
Brent Kirby	White's Residential & Family Services
James R Moore	Trinity Evangelical Divinity School
Scott Olson	One Collective
Wayne Richards	Habitat for Missions
Dwight Robertson	Forge
Chamnol Romdenh	World Gospel Mission
Mark Schnell	Warner University
Jeffrey Shafer	Brianna's Hope
Jon Wiest	Groundswell

#### **SPECIAL SERVICE**

M. David Boss	Kokomo Rescue Mission
James E Moore	United Methodist Church
Alexander (Al) Soultz	Farrville Church
Brad Terhune	Grant County Rescue Mission
James Watkins	Writing & Speaking
Richard Wollan	Friends Church

#### **ORDAINED MINISTERS ON RESERVE**

Steven Bray (1)	O. Allen Laws (2)
David Breidenbaugh (1)	Bradley LeRoy (1)
J. Eric Crisp (1)	Joshua Light (1)
Timothy Gallant (1)	Paul McBee (2)
Harold Henson (1)	Richard Van Vuren (1)
Gwen Jackson (2)	Joshua Warren (1)
Rochelle Jenkins (1)	

#### **ORDAINED MINISTERS ON EDUCATIONAL LEAVE**

Meredith Brower	Robert McHenry
Kenneth Gilmore	Logan Patriquin

#### **ORDAINED MINISTERS WITHOUT APPOINTMENT** (Non-Voting)

Nicholas Armes (3)	David Parker (4)
Robert Baker (4)	Cary Sanders (1)
Stephan Binns (1)	Douglas Sharrard (2)
Micah Hudson (4)	James Sonnefield (2)
Rick (Tony) Matthews (4)	Benjamin Thomas (1)
Wesley Munsell (4)	Ronald Weller (3)
James Neal (4)	

#### **RETIRED ORDAINED MINISTERS**

Roger Abraham	Barry Faucett	Matthew Miller
David Anderson	Timothy Fisher	Herbert Mohler
John Arnett	Don Glenn	James Mowat
Mark Atkinson	Sidney Gray	Stephen Nelson
Oren Atkinson	Joseph Harmon	Robert Pavey
William Babb II	Hubert Harriman	John Perkinson
William Babb III	Harvey Herring	Paul Phillippe
William Barlow	Ronald Herring	John Porterfield
Ernest Batman	Dennis Hilton	Donald Pruett
Daniel Bellinger	Thomas Hines	Charles Purciful
Clarence Bence	N. Keith Hinton	Paul Ramsey
James Blackburn	Steven Hudson	James Ricker
Richard Borgman	Larry Hughes	Kenneth Sandefur
Paul Boss	Gale Janofski	Joe Sawyer
Daniel Bosworth	Ronald Johnson	Robert Schroeder
John Bray	Keith Jones	Jerry Snyder
Patty Bray	James Keilholtz	Richard Sprowl
William Breidenbaugh	E Wayne Keller	Paul Swauger
James Buckles	Joseph Kelly	D. Phil Thomas
Lawrence Byrnes	Max Kingsolver	James Nathan Thomas
Wanda Carter	John Lake	Douglas Trennepohl
Howard Castle	Marvin Lamb	David Troyer
George Cecil	Carol Longenecker	George Troyer
CK Chitty	Kent Longenecker	Robert Van Cise
Michael Cloud	F. Wayne Lyon	Lloyd Van Meter
Steven Colter	Jo Anne Lyon	David Vardaman
Judith Crossman	Bernard Lytle	James P Vermilya
Dennis Croy	Larry Maddox	Keith Vincent
Steven Cunnington	Rebecca Maddox	Joseph Watkins
Richard Dean	Samuel Maddox Sr.	Lois Watkins
Charles Dederick	Sidney Martin	Silas West
Richard Deisler	Rick Matthews	Logan Westrick
Jay DeNeff	Charles McCallum	David Whitmire
Keith Drury	Ronald McClung	Norman Glen Wilson
Daniel Eckart	Donald McDowell	Norman Glenn Wilson
Gerald Edris	Robert Medows	Walter Wilson
Fred Ellis	Leland Mercer	David Wright
Steven Emery	Ralph Meredith	John Wrightsman

### **Commissioned Ministers**

**RETIRED COMMISSIONED MINISTERS (Non-Voting)** 

James Barnes

### **Licensed Ministers**

Amy Allison	Roanoke Arise
Kaitlyn Altman	Greentown
Steven Arnett	New Castle Mt Zion
Michael A Colaw	Plymouth Shiloh
Jessica Cordes	Columbia City New Hope
Trevor Dailey	Anderson North
Madeline Delgado	Gas City Eastview
Samantha Freds	Warsaw Pathway
Lisa Glunt	Sheridan Six Points
Alexander Henry	Elwood Main Street

Kimberly Hewitt	Muncie Rising Hope
Logan Hoffman	Indiana Wesleyan University
Bradley Holmes	Fort Wayne Lifeway
Matt Horne	Chaplain
Christopher Hurst	Columbia City New Hope
Josh Lavender	Indianapolis Trinity
Esther Osborne	Warsaw Pathway
Preston Trent	Lapel Daybreak
Aaron Wilkinson	Marion College
Michael Wood	Tipton Trinity

### Other Appointments (Non-Voting)

#### **MINISTERIAL STUDENTS**

Maria Alavez	Steve Johnson
Paul Baker	Grace Kann
Destiny Bess	Timothy Kelly
Dale Bradford	Matthew Kennedy
Nicholas Brock	Sarah Klassen
Leslie Colaw	Zachery Koch
Tisha Connell	Alexander Lawrence
Amy Cruez	Nathan Mabry
Hermilo Cruz-Carlos	Kayla Patton
Alex Cusumano	Mallory Retherford
Austin Farlow	Kyle Sanders
Makayla Fulton	Yechan Son
Yesenia Gaytan-Garcia	Dorothea Staten
Eli Gilmore	Noland Stewart
Tomasa Granados	Rose Thompson
Jorden Green	Patrick Tierney
Duane Hammonds	Raegan Tippey
Jennifer Harper	Lennaire Vaughn
Dana Hernandez	Katie Wing
Caleb Hines	

#### **COMMISSIONED SPECIAL WORKERS**

Steven Armes	Jack Marshall
James Bechdol	Sue Wampner
Lenville Gross	

#### LAY SUPPLY PASTORS

Jose Argenis Cardenas	Elkhart Cielos Abiertos
Jerry Smith	Tipton Ash Street
Benjamin Tuimuk	Indianapolis Shalom

#### **NON-WESLEYAN SUPPLY PASTORS**

Gawin Anderson	Indianapolis Divine Direction
Jose Guerrero	Elkhart Cielos Abiertos
Darrel Herring	Indianapolis Central
Gregory Lismon	Indianapolis Calvary Family
John Moyer	Bluffton Sonlight
Terry Vaughn	South Bend The Bridge
Ervin Webster	Indianapolis Saint Stephen

### MINISTERS IN PROCESS OF TRANSFER

Colleen Derr	Charles (Chuck) Vernon
Oliver Dongell	Yamil Acevedo
Heather Semple	

#### Page 58

# District Calendar 2023/2024

September	14	DBA Meeting	
	23	Celebration of Holiness	
	ТВА	Next Level Church Experience	
October	20	District-Wide DBMD	
November	ТВА	Fall Retired Ministers Gathering	
December	7	DBA Meeting	
February	15	DBA Meeting	
March	4-7	Exponential Conference	
April	2-5	The Heartland Gathering	
	18	DBA Meeting	
	26	District-Wide DBMD	
	ТВА	Spring Retired Ministers Gathering	
June	29	District Conference	

# CONTACT



### Address

**District Office** 5316 S Western Ave Marion, Indiana 46953

Shared Accounting Services (Submit all district payments here) PO Box 7186, Fishers, IN 46038



### Telephone

765-674-8593



### Online

office@crossroadsdistrict.org www.crossroadsdistrict.org



### YOU'RE TRANSFORMING LIVES THROUGH JESUS CHRIST. WE'RE HERE TO HELP PROTECT THAT MISSION.

American Church Group of Indiana is proud to represent Brotherhood Mutual Insurance Company<sup>®</sup>, the preferred property and liability insurer of The Crossroads District of the Wesleyan Church.

Together, we increase good risk management, create safer places to worship, provide care for clergy, and offer access to valuable resources. Brotherhood Mutual designs its coverages and services around the unique needs of Christian organizations, so you can focus on ministry.

Contact your local agent today to learn more about these insurance and risk management solutions:



Property & Liability Insurance



**Commercial Auto** 



Workers' Compensation





Payroll Services



Health Benefits





### Marv Miller, CIC, M.Div. Agency Principal

800.572.6197 MMiller@AmericanChurchGroup.com AmericanChurchGroup-Indiana.com

Copyright 2021 Brotherhood Mutual Insurance Company. All rights reserved. American Church Group and the American Church Group logo are registered trademarks of Brotherhood Mutual Insurance Company and are used with permission by American Church Group of Indiana, LLC.